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1 THE COURT: Please oe 3eatea, iadies anaq
2 Jentlemen. Now, come vack up, please, Dr.
3 Woirfs«i1ll, anaga, Mr,'Cuylet, wnen you're set.
3 ' Or. Wolxskill remains onAcne-Qcana under oatctna.
3 ' » MR. CUYLER: Your Honor, i‘ve pondered
6 cnis_bqt carefuliy and my :juestions will taxe
7 apout 30 ainuces, I cannot voucn ror now long
87 the witness' answers will cake.
2 THE COURT: OQkay., leé's sSe2 how we go
10 CROSS-£XAMINATION BY :4R. CUYLEZR:
11 Q Doctor, you nave»bef?re you, I oelieve,
i2 cha copy of your report tnat's péen marked into
13 evidence. Is tnat correct?
14 A Yes.
15 Q All rignt, atc the end of the report, cthnere
16 até a series of diégrams, am I correct?
17 A Ia the appendix? |
18 Q Yes.
19 A Yes.
- 20 Q I‘m not talking aoout the ones in thne
21 jJlassine envelopes chat you prepared or yjour company or
22 \someone gfeparea. I'a calking adout what appear to oe
23 some pnococopies. Is thnat correct?
24 A Yes.
25 Q - Can you tall cne Court wnare you ootained
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< WULLSR1LL~LLOSS-CUyler ; 3
1 these? 1 cake icrfrom Olamond ShamrockK cnrougn ir.
- 2 Staward?
3 A The Dase .aaps, yes.
4 - Q All rigac, wés there any inrformacion in
“ . 5 this compendiuin tna:'you did not obtain from Diamond
| 6 | Shamrock?
E 7 A Weil, I ootained some of tne information from
?b 3 . Gordon Steﬁardwno I believe is ao longer aa employee
9 or Diamond Snamrock. |
. 10 Q But these uiagrams were pasically Diamond
o' . .
1 11 | Shamrock diagrams?
12 A Thac‘s»correcn;
:L' 13 Q DO you <now wnat time these diagrams 3peak
- 14 to, the diagrams of cthe plant?
15 A Well, tneée are various drawings orf the plant
‘C' 16 layout at various times. The dates are generally on
17 2acn drawing as to wnen tnét drawing was produced.
18 Q All r;gnt.'can you go through and,'first
< 19 or all, were tnere any drawings that you saw that are
20 ' not produced -- prodauced, ratner, in your appendix?
. 21 A Yes, chere was a large selection orf drawiangs and
22 I velieve iir. Staewara participated in selectiag tae
23 ones tnat would illustrate anis analysis of wnere diox;n
o 24 was.
E 25 h Q all rign:}' Jow, wnen 70U 3aid chne Qate is
_ _
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WOLL3K14i4-Cross-Cuylar 4

on the urawing, can you cail us waere you're'rere::ihg
to?
A | Down iia cne mé:gin'under tae section at tne
ooctom, chere are usuvally signacures and dates, some oOf
waicn are legible and some Of whicn. are nét legiple on.
tnese reproguctions. |
Q Whactever the dates say, dia yoﬁ anaerscand
chiat cnese diagrams represenced the plant as it existedu
in the 19603 or :ne.1950$? In otner words, oerore or
arcer cne gxplésion? |

A At the moment, I don't recollect ii we had the

19 -- ctne pre-1960 arawings, I don't remember if

they‘re inciuded in this or aot. I know that dr.
Stewara indica:edron nere pre~1960 locations of
2guipmenc. R

Q “All right, out your understanding‘tnen is
tpac wnile “r. Steward may nave indicated pre-1960
locations £for the most parc, chese depict tne plant ==
witn ﬁne e#ception of thnose no:aciohs == depict nne'
structure or tne plant following tne 1960 2xplosion and
che racoastruction? |
A Weil, as I said, I don‘t recollect if amayoe
thera2 is a pre=-1960 drawing in nere, :héte may oe.

Q- Néll, ay Juestion 15 tnis -

A I did aot selact cne arawiags.
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WOLLSKlLli=Cross-Cuyler

Q -- ir cnere-is a pre-~1960 drawing or tae
section, {Oor inscance, oi the plant cnat was aot
reconscructed suéh as cne L rormuiations ouiiding,
woulid cTnat ©dO your understanading rerlect aonecheless
tne layout and tne condiction and che layout of tne
Puilding asAin exXisted during tne 19605?

A I cninx tnere 13 a pre-1960 drawing in nere.
Tne iast one tnat I'm ivoking ac, I pelxeve, iz a 19.—-
pre-1960 arrangemeat.

2 All rignt, and wnac is cnat? On, all

rignt, tnat's cne old process ouilding, right?

A Thac's the old process opuilding.

W | So ctaat ceftainly didan't exist i1n 19607
A -Thac's correct, this is a drawing prior co the
explosion.

Q = Now, 3ir, you said that you had read 17

depositions, do you recall tnat testimony?
A | Yes.

Q All right, that was for preparation or
your reportc P-363?
A I reaa Burton's deposition page-oy-page --

Q — No, ay question is tne 17 depositions you
reviewed, uaid you raview tnem prior to tne preparation
Of your report P-3637 R

A Yes, I did review tnem prior.

. MAXUS026890 .
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W . Did you review any depositions after
Ppreparation or £-363, any uew depoSit;oné?
A - Well, I tnink there was one oy Hr. Smith tnat I
don'c oeiieve I nad oerfore preparatctien ot ctne reporet.

Q Asige rrom ilr. sSmicn's deposiction, nave
Jou rev1éwéd any new Jdeposicioas witqin tha2 last six
wonths?
A Aell, I can'c recollect exadtiy-now inaay I naa
verore cniS'cepott was presented. I had a large‘stacx
9L tham at- tnac cime. I Jdo rememper tnat I gpt dr .
Smitn's depoaition'later. I may have gotten Dr.
McBurney'‘'s and cnere_may nave oeen a rew octhers, outc
there was a large stack or depoasitions availaplie prior
to cné reporct.

Q Have you reviewed any depositions in tne

last six months that you nad not reviewea at ctne time

ot your preparétion orf P-363 ctnat you consider are

material co your opinions?
A ; Welli, I've revieweu Homer Smith, tnat's cne one
I can't recollect ror sure tnat I received after this
report. I chink tnere may nave peen 3ome c¢tiiers, aJut
I'a no? sure wne;nér they were ﬁnere perfore or after.

| 19 Certainliy aotning chat stands out in your

mind today?

A That's correcec.
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Q Cercainly notﬁing that's rormed cne nasis
0L your cestimony in court eitner toa#? or yesterday?‘
A  Well, I think all of tnem nave formed the oasis
LOr .y C2sTimOny in courct this week, |

2 Are you aware tnat in April of this year,
there were a numbét oL deposit;ons of prior plani

employees taken?

A , Well, I aon't recoilect, again, cne daces =--
Q " Good enougn.

A == tpnat were on cne deposxtiohs.
Q 8ut notaing there rings a oell? For

instance, ir I were to tell you chere were sucn

depositions, could 7you tell ae tne names of any 9t the

inaividuais deposed?

A Well, I chink if you told me the names or the
ones that were taken arter the teport, I could provaonly
recognize tnat chose were depositions that I have reaa.'r
Q - Buc chere's notning -- you can't teil me
that cnere's any -- wnat I'm trying to find out i3 did
you read any depositions taken since April, and if so,
wnich ones and did tneyl:ell you anytning 3ignificant
apout the operation dt this plant during tne '50s or
tne *'60s?
A I canho: tell 7ou winica ones I nave ra2ad since

the reporc was written, out I can cail you taat ail or

. MAXUS026892



WOLL3R1L4i-Croas~Cuyiar 8

<
1 chne ones cnat I aave read, ail 17 cnac I've reaa, a0
< 2 AOC chanye &y conclu;;ons.
3 : Q All‘rignt. fine. ﬂow;‘you‘ve ;nuicafea.-
4 that you read Ar. 3urton's racaer carerfuily ana
< 5 :Loseiy.. Is tnac correct?
i) A Yes.
7 | ¥ ° Ana you nad two days Of uapositions, cwo
< , _ . .y
3 - VOlumes or depositions, correcc?
3 A Yes.
10 ‘ | Q You fouad airs mé:erxal. nig aeposition, ¢o
11 oe lnrotmative, I take it, on plant operations?
12 A i acéepteo them as intormative. |
o 13 Q Okay. |
) 14 A ‘They were certainly in detail.
15 Q All rignt, and you found ais information'
o 16 ~to oe matetxal tO your analysis? |
| i7 A Yes.
18 Q All rignt, and you rfound nis information
“ 19 o e celgvan: to jou: analysis., 1Is chat correct?
20 A Yes.
, 21 - Q All rignec, of tné'aepositions you read,
- 22 “id you fiad aaynsody to naverinrormacion inore .naterial,
23 wore ralevanc_cnah tnac provided oy dr. Bur:bn ia cteras
e 24 of the operacions of chis plaat trom tne 1950s7?
25 A Otner depositions described activicies, you
C
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Know, waicn were oeyond the cenure orf 3urton, atcer ne
ierc cane plant, 30 that was new information aot covered

in Burton's depositions.

Q Tnac’s wny I asked tae 1950s.
A I oeg your pacrdaon?
Q That's wny I specificaily asked in ay

gJuestion duriag tne 1350s,

A No, I dida‘t rind anytning tnat, you <now, among
cne'aeposi:ious thatc covered the 1950s tnac co me was
significantly aifferent caat woula afféc: cne analysis
that I was maxlng..

Q Were you consuited at ali oy cne Canill
Lirm with regard to your opinion as to who amight be an
appropriate ract witness to ?resent to tnis cour:?

A I dida't cacen oné word, an important what?

Q A significant 6: an imporctant ract witness
to present.to tnis courc?

A A fact -- 1 did ask that Gordon Stewérd oe a
witness in tnis court --

Q No, sir, my Juestion was were you
consulited with regard to tnac? Yes or no, and caen
we'll go oﬁ Lo wnat you did atcer than.

A well, I don‘t rememper ir chey asked me or I
ésxga.tnem cnat I would like Steward to testify --

Q Okay.

.. MAXUS026894




WUlLlLoRida=Ll0aa3= Uyial 7 ) 10

C
1 . A -- apout caese events.
o 2 ' Q , Tna:‘s':ine, out ay Juescion is qid you
3 rejJuesc Hr. éutton £S testixy?
4 A vﬂo.
< 5 Q ALL rigat, were you ever advisea oy tne
' s Caniil firm ctnat they aad laterviewed ilr. 3urton,ahd.
7 in fact,rwere you providea -- if you were 30
~ 8 . provided == were you providea wicn any noces OI tnac
-9 interview?
10 A I don't recollect any aotes of an incerview.
11 Q You were never aavised that Mr. Spivak ana
12 Mr. Cox nau interﬁiewed Mr. Burton?
'c. 13 A Welil, I may nave oeaen, out I aon‘t recollect
o 14 seeing-any aoctes or I don‘t'recollec; oeing aavised of
15 that.
o : 16 Q Very good. Sir, now ybu had testiried
17 yesterday in response'to some aypoctneticals, I oelieve,
13 placed to you oy Hr. Roeptf and I'm not purporting to
:b | 19 - gJuote you exaccly,-but to che eiffect that an inalyéis
20 | Of whectner something constitutes an accidénc requités a
21 case-py~case analysis of ali of the relevant facts. Do
< v h
22 fou recail tnat?
23 MR. FALLS: iay.I'nave chac questionvread
, 24 _ Lack.
S -
' 25 v ~ THE COURT: Yes, would you read tnac oack,
\
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WOLLSKili-Cross=-Caylar : 11

»please, Miss Yunasz,
(Wnereupon cthe last ques:ion'xs read

Lack oy‘tne Coqrt Reporner.f
A I don't recaii cnat we #ece teying to decide
wne:ne; sometning wWas an accidentc oased on its relevanc
races, I tnihx we were discussiang what would de
env1ronmental damage onased on the :ac:s Of tna
situacion. ”

Q - You don'c racalli saying tnat an ‘accidanc
reguires casa-py-case adalyéis? |
a Weil, L£Oor the purpose or aésessing environmencal
aamage, yes,.

Q Well, no, for che purpose orf determining

‘wWwnetner something 15 “an accident® or not?

A : Petnéps we Jdiscussea something in that veia.
Q Pernaps?
A Well, I don't recollect 2xactly that ae asKked me

a Juestion -~

Q He gave you soae nypotnaticals, He said
assume yournave a pump, assume it starts to leak,
assume a pe:iod Or time Joes oy verore it's cepairéd.
assume tnere's an accidenc, ao.you racall cnatc
cestiamoany?
A Yes,

2 Ana ia respoanse to cthat, you said I uon't

 MAXUS026896
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<now, well, i aoa‘t Know, I doa‘t nave 4ailil ﬁne facts,
2acn lacident reguires a case-py-case énalyszs of all
tne relevaﬁc‘cases. Isn't chat corrace?
: That*‘s corract.

Q QOkay, would you cell ae one »ump, one

particualar punp, caat leaked in the 1950s? Take any

one you want, Jgive me ali cae relevant racts ragarding

thnat i1nadividual leak and you can starc 2y teliing ae
what puap 1t was and what aay 1t sctarted TOo ieak.

A , I uéve never .aae any analysis oL any sidgle
pump.

Q - Becausde all tnose relevant ifacts siaply
aren't availapie for analysis, ian't chac correcet, tnan
simple Kind of decail simply isn't availaple?

4R. FALLS: Let nim answer tche quegtion.
please.
THE COURT: Let Dr. Wolfskill rinish.
A I peiieve tnere is informacion in tne
depositions chat talk about a particular aevice,
whetner it was a puhp or some other device tna:'

actually leaKed, they identifiea a pa:;icuiar,ieag.

‘Whetner caey gave enougn detalisa to conclusively

assess, I don't Know.
Q All righc.

A I amean I don'c recollect cnat cnere was tnat

- MAXUS026897
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mucn decail ia tne deposition.

Q Fair enougn, ou:vunac we can sayris taat
givén.tnis pianc, given che generai‘condition OL tTne
plaat as it was in 1950, given cne jeneral type of
operation chac exl#cad cnere ia 1951, given cthe typé ot
equipmént Chat was tnere and che cype of danu;acturing
proceés, Wwe do £a0wW tnac {rom cime to time, there were
going to e such ieaxks?

A Tfhat's correcet.

2 Okay, and unat'sranc;cxpated. that's
axpected?

A They expectea tne equipment will 1eéx, that's
‘rignc.

Q Sir, are you aware tchat cnlotbpnenoxy'
herpicides pnave an anti-pacterial erfect?
A No, I'm not aware of that feature.

Q Now, sir,_wete.}oﬁ nere wnen Commissioner
Catania tesciriea?

A No.

Q You were not. Lect me just ceil you, sif.
nis cescimony was and if I've summarized this
incorrecctly, I'm sure somepody will correct ae, out
that Dasically any one of a aumper of the prioricy

~pollucaacts tnat were.found at cne site would nave

reguired a cleaagup? Have I pasically said caac

. MAXUSO268
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NOLLSK1L4a—LIOSa=Ldjier , ' 14

correcciy, genclemen? I Juess.
AR. FALLS: 1In connection with che sale or
che property.-
| MR, CUYLER: Yean, unuaaer ECRA.
2 Are youviﬁ agréement witn cnhac?
A Well, I'am not sure ctonat any =-- I wmean chat every
si1ngie bne-found would reqqire a cleanup under ECRA. 1
naQe raad ar;rCaiania‘s; you £now, che recé:d, cne
crénscr;pc —
" Uh-nun.
A -- of nis cestiamony aad I'@'noc'sure tnat hér
said every -- if I understana your question‘rignt_--
Q . Let me simpliiy ic.
MR. FALLS: Let aim iinish his answer.
Q Lect me simplify it so we can séve time.
Let me focus you in oa DDT. Are you at least in
ag;eement witn Hr. Ca;ania tnat tne DDT round on tne-
site would require cleanup?
MR. FALLS: Under ECRA.
Q ‘Unaer ECRA. |
A I actualily would nd: nave_answered :hose
4descions taac werefposed co Catania tne same way;
sacause I s3till oelleveu&natrtne State would we
fegjulred cO ShOW TNAT what amounc of cnemi;al-was tnare

would oe aararful and reguire cleanup ana cae aere

. MAXUS026899
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WOLL3K1L1-Cross—-CuyLrer ’ : is

presence, I don‘'t pelieve, would regquire cieanup}

It, again, it's similar co the CERCLA Jrocass,
auc it would require cne>State to determine thac cnere .
is a cthredt to puoiic nealth 1a cae environment uue wo
the presencg'or'a c¢nemical in some Juancity.

< Okay. dow, let e jusc ask yOu tais
4ues;ion'in,front OLf tnis Court wilicn nas to judge,
among otner cniags, your-creaioiliﬁy. Are you telling
tais Courc @aac you aave doupncs tnpat ODT founa in tne
4uén:i£xes rouad a:'Listgr Avenue wouid reguira2 a
cleanup under ECRA? |
A I could p;edict tnat ic prooaply would require

cleanup given those amounts, out I don't tnink the amere

presence constitutes a requirement of a cleanup.

Q | Now,-sir, are you aware that ODT,
manurgactured DDT, stopped in 1959 at chis planc?
A I-recoilect tnat 1t stopped sometime in tane
'50s, I'm not sure wnat date.

Q OKay, tnat informacion is set rforth in the
record of decision wnich was put inco evidence oy

Plaintirfts, are you aware oOf tnac?

A Yes.

2 3ir, am I correct in sayiag, tnen, that

whactever ODT was round at this planct naad to exist as oL

- the date taat opération was aoaaaoned, uyismaatlead ana
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WOlIskilll-vross—-Cuyier ' ' 16

1 | sent someplace 2lse?
2 A | I thaink tnac's correcc, I Jdon't &now or aay
3 otner sources of DDT.
4 _ 9] Okay, Were you at 411 AsKed at any time co
3 Qo an analfsis as toO wnat portions of Alternative
5 Numoer 3 tnat was specified as a mode of cieanup in cne
7 ROD woulid oe regquired for tne DDT and wnat were
3 reguireda exclusively oy dgioxin, sou were aever aéxed to
J Jd0 :nat'anéiy51s. ware you?
10 A Thact's correct.
11 Q Okay, and it would oe rather unrair of me
12 to ask you to do-it Off the curr as you sitc nefe ctoday?
13 A dell, I nave an opiaion that oecause aio#xn was
14 found ac every place it was looked at at that sité. it
15 would be a-feddndanc exercise.
16 | Q okay. Néw, sir, let me ask you, you
17 . mentioned that your opinion witna respect to I cthink, -
18 on, Opinion Wuamber 3 on the exnioit'“cbnclusidns of Dr.
‘19 Woifskill -- Dr. L;_Antnony Woliskiil®™ was éredicated
20 in parc on :et:q-analyses-you nad done at various
21 pollution sines?m
22 A Yés.
23 VQ Jkay, now inany poliuction sites wers we
24 ﬁalxing apout cnere, give me the nuaoder?
25 A Nell, I made a iist one day 9F ctne ones chat I
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Sould recdllect tnat we've nad tnis retrospective
analysis and it came to 20 s0 I thiak cne aumaer is
apouc 20. | |
Q | S0 1a comparing tne Liscer Avenue plént o

FyOur 1nroraation you anad oy way orf packground, you
cowpared tnis Liscer Avenue pianc co 20 other pdilutéd'
plants tnat you've oeen to?
A Tnac's'éorrec:.

| W - OKay, and you tbunu tnat tne problems or
tne conditions or cae type @ situacion wnicn Jave rise
Lo tne pollucion ut 80 Lister Avenue was very cypical
Oof tne same conditions wnicn nad existed during tne |
‘508 and during tae '60s at chese otner 20 Polluted
sites. Is that corract?
A Some of the conditions were ¢ypical here. Some

OrL thne otner plants nad different xinds of discharge

- 3treams 30 chey were not ianvolved witn cthe 80 Lister

planc.

2 Okay, cair enougn. Now, 1f I underscand
wnatc yoﬁ'te 3aying 1an regard to your Opinioan l{a), i
naa asxed you oefor2 just a Lew minutes ago wnecther
g1ven'cne condiclion, che natiure Oorf tnhne operacions, che
age or ctae plant, che 195;, wnetner you coulid
anﬁicipa:e accidencal escapes or organic compounas and

704 1naicaced chac, yas, you could.

. MAXUS026902



WOLLSKLILI=-UCOSS8=Cuyler ’ : 18

1 I cake 1c, and let me just <ciarify tais/
2 tnac what you're saying coulu noc oe anticipacad wWas
3 | cne enactmenc or CERCLA or that type of legislation?
4 .| A Thac's correcec.
3 3 Wwnicn would mandace cleénup of those
3 conditions? |
7 A Thac;s correcec.
v& ] Okay,‘I taka 1t also wnac you're sayiag
9 Lrom your review of tne felevant regulacory iaws and‘
100 | statuces cnac Da31ca¢ly-cnere 18 striccer earorcement
11 :oday;'s:riccet inspecting and repo::ing ragquirements
12 and that ctne governmenc 1S pasically devoting more
13 resources coday to the enforcement or environmental
14 regulacions than it was duriag ctne '50s8 certainly and
15 TO 3ome e#tént during cha '60s?
16 A | That's correct. |
17 ' Q QRay, would you agree witn me,-51r. tnat
13 ‘. today itc's vircually 1mpossidle for a Chemical
13 hanufac:u:er, indeed, rfor anyone to élay a Kind or cat
20 ahd mouse Jame witn tne rederal Government wneﬁ it
21 comes to pollutlgn? |
22 ) A I don't understand wnat a cat ang mouse game
23 encticely 1s.
24 Q Let me Jo 1t and cry to jJet away wicn ic,
25 chat's what I amean oy a cat and aouse game. ‘

. MAXUS026903 .
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C
1 A de actually nave an ex=-client wno I taink was
< 2 doing tanat in 1986, 1985.
3 Q 3ut cne}‘re-go@ng to get caugnc?
4 A As near asllfﬁnow}vcne RCRA rules as well as tae
30 5 CERCLA rules are Qirficult co circumven: and I'm not
é o sure wnat perceatage of peqpxe.may @scape one or otner
E | 7 'of cnose\regﬁlations. There may oe some, I can't say
b 3 there wouldn't w2 none.
9 Q NOW, oﬁ: ay po;ht 1ls ctals, simply tnat one
%E_ 10 | QL tne main differences in cne law as cney existad in
L - ’ .
| 11 | 1980 :fom tae 1950s is that enforcement i3 much tougner
‘12 today ‘than it ever was in cne 1950s?
%L; - 13 A | Weil, the laws anda the énfotcemen: ig difrferent
T 14 oy a widg margin.
% 15 , Q How, sir, you used the phrase "dilution 1is
16 the solution,* doAyou recall thnac? | |
17 A Dilucion is tnersolutiou?‘
18 Q Yes.
- i9 A Yes.
20 - , Q And you said that was oasically the
\ 21 pnilosopny tnat existea when, in tne"SOS, 160s, wnen
© o _
22 aid tnat exisc? .
23 A I:'mainly'éx;sted untxl‘tne permiﬁ calleda NPDES
o 24 was instlgu:ea some;ime arouna 1970 wnién-reguired
‘ 25 easuremenc Of releases to surrace wacer aaa reguirea a
i\-j
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peimi: similar to tne air permits of a few years
arllier and oace cnat regulacion oecame 1n»effecc and
wa3s enforcea, releases to rivérs wera tnen_meaéured and
parmeated as to Juaacity SO cnat tne polliucion was
permaeacad as to aow anuaca could e released. ‘I think
thatc was tne single factor that .aade the change. |
Q Now, p:iof to cnat ovack in'c&e days when
aiiution was cné soliution, are you sayingrcnat tnac
pnrase -“diiution is che splution' Qas the license to
aump iiwiced quanhities or.anytning you wanted on any
wo0ay OL surrace water or onvnne ground?
A No, I don‘t cthink icv was a license to dump

anytning anywner2, I cniank it was a pnilosopnhy cnat

causea erfluents to pe discharged iato large poaies oL

water chat would actually dilute it. That's, I aean, -

tnac‘’s a requirement of dilution is that there 1s a

- large pody of water to dilute an eifluenc.

Q wa, wnen you nave ub on your'conclusions'
Jdiamond woulid not nave anticipa:ed; diamond would not
nave anticipated as you do in the peginning of 1(a) ang
l(c)'on your'conclusions, you aren't celling us cnac
/70U can actually read ctne ainas oI the axecucives or
Diamond SnamrocCk who were taere auriﬁg tne 13503 and
1969s -- up tarougn 1969, are you?

A Aeil, tni3 13 oplnion ana chat's why cane wora

. MAXUS026905 .
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“
1 “wouia" is cthere.
- 2 Q Just an opinion?
', 3 A If I nad a cfacc, I would say Diamond dida.
4 _ ) S50 whact you‘'re uoinyg is‘jou're oringing
N . . . . .
bt 5 jour experience, your expertise, your inowieage to this
o courcroom and you'vre saying caat, in fact, under tnae
7 totality of circumstaances, it is your opinion tnat a
a 3 reasonapie responsivle manuracturer in che posicion of
3 Diamona 3Snamrock woula a0t have anticipated. 1Isn‘c
o 10 tcnat correct?
C :
11 A Taac's correct.
12 Q All right. How, 3ir, would you agree with
3@ : 13 @ae -~ I think we agreae, and you correct me if I'm
14 wrong, that dilution was the solution was not a license
15 to dump unlimicea quanticies of wnatever you wancted
< 16 1nto cthe environmenc?
17 A Tnat's correct.
18 _ Q  Okay, ana would you also agree witn ne
- : ) ' " . .
19 That given any ctype of cnemical, any cnemical can o2
20 toxic and nazardous ia strong enougn conceatratcions
) 21 . under tne right circumstances, rignc?
-
22 A In general, yes..
23 Q okay, SO one cnlng Yyou aave to uecermine
kg 24 wnen you're 100King ac ctne parase “dilucion is che
; 25 solucion® is (a) wnat cype of cnemical am I dumpiag,
C
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correct, tO KNOW wnecher it's rs2asonaole, wnecaer 1ic's
reasonaole and responsiole co aump?

A 'I'm not sure cnac in cnose two Jecades cnac
Plaat operators were accualliy tnat sopniscicacad taatc
tney taougnt taey could ailute one cnemicai, »2ut not
anotner., I don't really pelieve there was an aWéreness
of discrimination as co cnemicail tjpe.

2 You're not -- you'ra sayiag chat in tne
1950s, you don't tnink canac someopdy, a company likKe
Diamona Shamrock, was sopmisticated enougn ﬁo snoﬁ thac
if it was aisposing of téole salt such as came qff this
process sodium cnloride in the Passaic River that ctnat
was one thing, odut tnat sometning like DDT was in a
totally dirfereat category wnen it_came>:o the old
ailucion is cne solucion soluction?

A Weil, at tnis particular plant, I thiank they
pelieve tpat tae rlow --
THE COURT: 'Mayoe you jusc ought co wait a
minucea, Go anead, please. |

Q GO ahead.

A -~ OL the river was sqfficient to nanaie-
whatever cney were putting in. I don‘t =-- I dida‘t gec
in the record mucn aistinccion o:; if any, tnat ctney
Wwere sensitive cO tne type oOr cnemic;;.

Q2 Well, 3i1¢ -~

. MAXUS026907
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THE COURT: Let me ask, would vou excuse
me just a minuce. Do I nave tne attora’ys nere
in cthe P.K. Real Estate matter? |

(wnereupon a discussion is neld ia ano:ner
macttarc.)

lTHE COURT: Fine, iet's continue. It will
only ctake a few ainutes for me cO oreak in this
triai. Go anead, please.

Q ' Sir,‘my 4uestion wasn'‘t adireccea to
Diamona, ay quescion is the :easonaolé responsiole
cnemiéal manuracturer during the 1950s, are you telling
tals Court tnat sucn a reasonanie responsiole cnemical
manutracturer would not have tae sophis:ication to Know
or appreciate tnat chere was a.difference Qsectween
dumping taople salt and QDT iato a surface water?

A I chink they approacned it cfrom a4 different
aspect which was ir tne -- wnatever material was their
éffluen:,rdid tneré look like there was plenty dilution
out tnere to hanala it wnicn was not very |
sopnisticated, but I'm sure in chis case, there was
morevcooling water cnan‘anytning else whicn'p:ooanly
nad cne least amount Orf cnemicals 1n it and I taink
tney undarscood at>cnis plani tnat cooling watar was

less or a pollutant cnan some otner chemical stream

‘pDecause, to @y knowledygsa, they anever nooked chat up to

.. MAXUS026908
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WOLLSK1ii-CLOss—-Cuyler . ' 24

tne sewer.

Q Sir, I promised I'm goiag to try and
:inisn:wi:nin a naic én hour ana ic's ohly wich youf
dsslstance aind I'Lll ask tne quga:ionrone more cime.

I want to know whecher in your opinion
wnetner a reasonaolie responsxoie cnemical manurfacturer
in cne 1950s would appteciaﬁé a diffe:eﬁce petween
Quaping caole salt and ODT iaco a oody or surcrace
water?

A Tes,

Q Thank ybu. Would a reasonanla resgon3131e
cnemical manufacturer in tae 19508 know cnat whatever
con:aminaﬁ: it was dumping 1into surrface water that tne
erfect would depend upon tne ultimate concencration of
ﬁna; contaminant in the surtace waﬁer?

A I do not ael;eve.:nat tney understood tne effect
Or concenctrations as 1t might arfect tng'envitonmen; or
punlic nealth cto any significant degree.

Q Well, now let me asKk you that. Are you
telling me ctnat in tne 1950s, the average reasonaole
responsiole chemical @anuraccurer dia notc appreciate
tnact caere was a correlation ovetween concentration aad
tne ﬁox;city Of aany given cnemical?

A ~ On, I.tninx'tney unders:éod that, ses.

Q Okay. During tne 19503, would the average

_ MAXUS026909
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r2asonaonle cesponsiole cnemical aanufacturer aave
appreciacaa that cthe toxicicy or any Jiven cnemical:
varied 1a cerms OL tne concencracioas aeeded to arfacc
differenct species of iilfe?

A I calnk tnere was very litctle appreciatioa at
chac cime o; plaﬁt operators3 as to dose ;espansé,‘\r
rexationénips to various envi:onmental.media.

q Have you done a liceracure researcn, for
instance; on DDT?

a do, nor on DDT.

Q All rignt, so you ate-téﬁally unaware canat
1in cne 1940s and I chink it was in 1949, out we will in
our case put it into evidehce, out you are unaware in
the 1940s, tne Canaaian Government did a researcn on

ODT ana founa it was more toxic to cold-plooded animals

than warm-pblooded animals and tnat it was more toxic to

£isn, you're unaware of tnat study?

A I nave not seen that study.
Q Okay.
A I don't think ctnat plaant managers and operators

nave seen :nat scudy ei:neff

) - How, sir, ia yqur opinion wnen a
reasonaoie responsiple cnemical manpuracturer 1in tne
19508 was going to operace under‘JLLutibn is tne

solution, would it nave oeen reasonaote and raspoasible

. MAXUS026910___
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Lor taat cnemical .manuracturer to nave aone a
literature searcn particularlj witn regard co cne
insecticides ana pes:iéiues tnat it kKknew i; was dumping
1ato surface Wa:ér thac 1t was .controlled aad ragulateag
Dy the Stace and Pederal Governmenc?
A I never ran into an opetator tnat said caey did
sucn an anaiysis.

.QV okay, ybu aever raia into one, out dOv]OUV

tnink it would nave oeen reasonanl2 ana rasponsiola

-even given cne liaiceaa technological knowlieage in cne

195082
THE COURT: I'm SOfry, would you step
pDack? Did we lose the Juestion? We provaoly
did, would you read it pack slowly, please, diss
Yunasz
(Whereupon tine last guestion is read
pack oy the Court Reporter.)
A I woulid say no'oecausé oL thé limicad Knowiedge
cnét the operacioans peopie néa.
THE COURT: Let ae just interrupt if I may
a ainuce, Dr;_wolfstill, and make sure taat
we're a0t aissing 3omecrning under an ambxgu;:y.
I would suspect without in 3aay way
demaaning :ne'lntelllgence or scientific skill

Of an operacor Oof a relatively small plant like

 MAXUS026911___
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1 tnis :nat:somgcody like dr. Keanedy or Ar.
C 2 | durton or one or chem wouldn't oe spending a lot
‘.F' " 3 _ ~ Or time reading tne litarature ana Keeping up oa
4 ' Zcientiric or acaueamic casearcn ia thls wnola
C i .
3 . area,
o _ S0 wnen we talk 6: a planc operator, I
o 7 -~ wouldn'‘t expect the nands-oa man or I_wouldn't
g expect tne naands-on .man running cpe plaant to oe
9 » watcniag cngse ﬁnings. but I .mi1ghct e@xpect cnhat
< i0 in a large_compahy witn scarfS-of_résearcn
11 | scientists ana people with academic bacngrounds
12 : . that somepody at cencral headguarcars br in a
:C 13'. ' laporatory support group would oe watcnxng tne
- 14 litetature'and Keeping abreasﬁ Oof things like
} 15 thac.
C ' ' -
. 16 Isn't chat s0, don't these companies .iake
17 _ an erffort to ao.tnat?
18 | THE WITNESS: Yes, and I think to che
19 extent Diamond nad a reseatch group that xep: up
ZO witn tne licerature, these people propably made
o 21 tnese studies and analyses, out I thiak what A
| 22 determinea plant oenavior at amy one pa:cicular>
23 location wés iatgély wnat they felct the puolic
Q 24 - Policy at cnat time ragarded etfluent;
25 Aad I tniak there are good examples
o

... .MAXUS026912




(\

il

12

13

14

lé

17

18

i3

20

21

22

Woirsg£iil-Cross-Cuyler : 28

aiong tne Passalc River of now puplic policy was
appiied to glén:s along that river auring cnis
tim2 ana the plaat I cnink normaily looked to
puolic policy co tell tnem as co wien enouga is
enoggh witn regaras to teieases and tnat
occurtea.in tnals planc as 1t went into :ﬁe ‘60s.

The puplic policy conviaued to reduce ﬁne,
amount or 2arriuent thac could pe released to the
river as weil as co the air tnat caey aever got
arouna to tne subsurrace, cnac aever occurrad
during the life of tnis plant.

But-for the river ana che air releases
vetween '51 and '69, tnere were perceptiole
<cnanges in ctne combinacion or Law and
enforcement of cne law that directed tne plant
to reduce their rlow of efiluents to the river
and s0 I think chey felt they were in proper.
accordance with puplic policy.

THE COURT: <Thank you. OKkay, go anead.

Q Sir, Dbasically if I understand chat last

answer, wnat you're saying is that you couid simply in

cne 1950s 1looKk out at cne Passaic River and see a dirty

river?

A Thnac's wnat tne record says thac tne river was

Jdirty in ctavse days.

.. MAXUS026913
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2. And cnat tnat was tne i1ndicia tne puolic

policy naa rererence to, it certalniy was one of tne

conditions?

A well, it was wy incarprecacion in looking at cne
recora ia cais tpat -the case was caac puolic policy

Colerated cnis porcion or tne river as a nign discnarge

orf erfluents.

Q . Ana that given tihne condition of tnhe river,

a little pit aore wasn'c going to nure?

A I chiak cnac's correct.
Q The old everypody's doing it.
A I thiax everyoody 1s doing it pecause puplic

policy permicted tnem to use che river'for their
discharge.

Q Now, to your knowliedge, sir, did you rfind -
any evidence that Diamond Snam:ocn. and particularly
the Concord Research Lab or waerever it was’originally‘
iocated in tne ‘503, I cnihk tnere was some testimony
it may nave switcned or sometning, did any licteracure

gearcnes on any Or the raw materials, ctne intermediates

or finisnea products aanuractured at 80 Liscer Avenue

‘during cae 'S50s or tne '60s?

A I'm arfraia I don‘t understand che guestion.
_ , g

9 Well, iet -me reparase it cnen. Ay

Juestion 1s aid you ring any evidence ia your review Of

AXUS026914
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any or tae macterials that Diamond 3hamrock did a
llceracure search on ctn@ toxility Of any of che raw
macerials, cne iancerimeulates or its rfinisnea products

at 30 Liscer Avenue auring che 195032

A I don't recoilect any at ctnis time.

-é Okay. How, ==

THE COURT: iHow, do we nave everypody in
P. k.;

A VOICE: Yes, Judge.:

TdE COURT: Woulia you just scep oown'fof a
mianuce, please, Dr. Wolfskill, and, Counsel,
wdu;d»you just vacé:e counsel table ror a coupile
or.minutes? Leave your papers tnere, I don't
tnink we'll be very loang.

(Whereupon a :eéess 18 taken,)

THE COURT: Let's go back to Diamond

’Snahrocx,‘pleasé. Okay, we navé-D:. Wolfskill
back dn the stand under catn ana wnenever ydu‘re
reaay, #Mr. Cuyler. |
Q | noctor, you n;ve your reporct? I'm 3orry,
do you dave your.raport, Doctor? |
a Yes.
4R. CUYLER: Judgev--
THE COURT: Ygs, I nhave ic.

mR. CUYLER: == you pave -a copy?

. MAXUS020915 ...
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Q We only need oOne, Doctor. The next to cne
iast rigure == I'a sorry; I cnink ic's che tnird from
the lasc tigure.in tae appeadaix, tnis is cthe
es:erlfica:ion unic. Is :néc correceg?

A fes,‘tnac‘s Snown on ctne drawing.

Q Pernaps you can neip e, tnera éppea:::o

oe liaes, vecrticali lines Laoelga “drain treacn,* éee

cnose?

A Yes.

2 Okay, is cna:-typical'or cusctomary Of cne
layouc o the plaat xnltne 508 and '60s to aave drain
crenches in cie rloor?

A Yes. |

Q And they_run out to I'm not sure if that's

drain ﬁrencn or drain trougn running along ouct the side

of':ne-buxlding?

A _ Yes.

Q- Ana ctnhat drain tto@gn runs down co a catcn
0oXx?
A Yes.

THE COURT: Whica exnipit is tnis? I Kaow
that cne large exaloit is from che répott 363,
wnat page are we oa?

4R. CUYLER: It's ctne third croa cae lastc,

Judge. If I may, wnat we're doing is =--

. MAXUS026916



&

10

11

12

13

14

15

17
18
19
20

21

WolLSKili-Cross=Cuyler 32

THE COURT: Okay.
4R, SPIVAR: voes it nave a lapel on it
MR. CUYLER: A-13 is che Labe;.
TEE COURT: The one I'm iooking at aas
A~13 nabdwrizcen and circled. |
4R. CUYLER: wWe'‘'re lookiug fignt up nere .
and out <o nere. |
| 4R. FALLS: Can you snbw me wnere you're
io0king?
slIR. CUYLER: ,Yéan.
Q And on tne otner side of tme catch 20X,

there's a aiscnarge or at least a line going out,

correct?
A Yes.
Q ‘And waecefs that going to?
A To tne Passaic River.
Q Tnanx‘ydu, Doctor.
4R. CUYLER: That's ail I nave, your
Honor.
THE COURT: All rignt, wno woula Like to
go nexct.

#MR. A0SER: I would, your donor, if I may.

Thanx you.

 MAXUS026917___
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CROSS~EXAMINATION BY MR. MOSER:

- A , Environmental impact is a very close corollary

Q'- vr. Wolrskill, I aay nave goc itVWtong
yesteraay'and would like to oring you back to some
4Juescions you were asked oy #Hr. Bates ana.reiateu to a
disciaction I chougnt you were making between
eavironmencal xdpaén aja envirqnmental damage. Do you

recail --

A Yes.

Q ~ -= the general subject of tnat cestimony?
A Yes. |

Q | Adould you describe r£or us wnat you meant.

oy environmental impact?

to the wora pollution., 1It's the inversion into an
environmental media like surface uaté: or air or ground
or ground water certain constituents and in a case like
chis, cnemicals that are not normal to that |
environmental media and that's =-- that is pollution and
tnat 1is environmen:al impéct on tnac media.

Q | And aid I understaand you tb oe saying putc
aot all pollution or not all eavironmeantal impacts are
envxronmeh:ax damage?

A - Tnét‘s correcc.
Q Ana wnen does it -=- does the impact rise

to cne level orf anvironmental damayge?

—.MAXUS026918
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A  Welli, under CERCLA iaw and EPA regulatiohs,
cnere 13 a iong process taac is5 i1nvolved in assessing.
iméact Or exposure is the cypical wofd‘useq cnere to
cecépco:s wnica receptor iz the eavironmental .edgaia or.
puolic, puolic healtn, and 1a tnat process wnicn
includes a Exsx analysis ana certain ocnér statuces, a
Jecision 1s aade oYy cné'reghlatbry agency that an
envxronméntal impact aas caused enviroﬁmencal damage.

o) S0 ia your view, éne im?act. tne
anvironmentcal impact‘doesn?t reaca cae ieved or
envi:onmental»damage unctili such time as ctae regulators
conclude that you've exceedea some tnreshold tney |
consider appropriate»at tne time?
A That's'tne current system under CERCLA.

Q- vYou also made rerereace I tniak during
your testiaony, too, what you called tne regular -- I

tnink your words were sometiing like regulacory

climate?
A Yes.
Q = And I'm trylag co understand wnecner do

- you agree oased on tne studies you've done that at any

time oetween 1951 and 1969 Diamond engaged in
gaidcnarges wanicn violatea iaws or reagulations
applicaonle co tae sice?

A . Well, I cnink cney violacad tne reguaiacions

. MAXUS026919
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applicanle‘tc Tthe sitce.

Q All rignc.

A | As I underStanu the regulation of chac river,
cae part of che reéhlatibu of cnat river. |

Q Alxa On how .aany occasions didltney do
Tnag?

A Well, I gon'‘t <now aoﬁ many occasions, I cnink
it was ggnérally'a contiauing process.

Q 50 you would agree wicth ae caat oased Jdpon
wnat you've done, it appears viamonda was on a Pasicalily
con:inuihg Lasi13 violating regulations applicéale to
tae plant? o
A I'mrnoc competent O actual;y juage a vioiation,
but tnac's my impression from reading the record.

Q ALl rignt. You also aade a rererence
again, i'm sorry} my notes weren't perfect, you were
discussingvl taougnc cne cnaraécer;stics of sSoil and
tne fact, as I got ic, that the depth of dioxin
couldn't tell aucn aoout aow -- you cguldn‘c téllrmﬁdn.
ftom tne gepth orf dioxinunecahse you need tO Know
tnings like tne permeapility of the s0il and the means
2y wnica cne dioxin}WOuld aave oeen transaitted, ao ir
nave cnag generall?'correct? |
A I aoﬁ': understand waat you cannot teil uy‘tne‘

geptn Or aioxin, cannot tell «nat?

 MAXUS026920
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Q- Well, wnac can you cell by cne depth or

aioxin?

A Primarily we can cell wnat portion orf tne soil

itas oeen impacced oy ﬁne presence of aioxzin.,

»] You can't ctell, rfor asxample, ctne duracion
cnac cnat aioxin nas oéen in caat loca:ion_orron :ha:
premises, can you? |
A Well, at'# given sampling ilke in 1984, ydu
cannot tell, jou Know, at wnat cime tine dioxin that is
aeing Qaeasured in thé laoora:ory cnaﬁ it was dapositaa
on tnat 30il particle.

Q. Rigne, ang, inrtac:. you can't tell wnen
it was deposited on tpac site?

A ' Not from cthe analysis, you know, not from the
resulcs Or cne laob:atory analysis. that‘s correct.

Q And, tfor example, in tn;s case, you're.not
aoie to tell us tne time at which an& parcticular |

off~site location was contaminated oy dioxin?

A Not from laporatory analysis oput, you Xxnow, only

from iaterpretacion.

Q Well, I mean you're nere toaay and you've
mage no sStudy or the orr-site aistriouction of Jioxin,
corract?

A I did not participate as a working aemper Of tae

team cnat did cne Off-site characcerization. I aave

_...MAXUS026921 _
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reviewed results of tnat, OSut not as a working aem
or ctne team.

Q Ookay., dna'you're a0c aqle TO say as ¢
parcicular orr-site location when caat location oe
contaminated witn d;oxiu axceapt cnac_in was
contaminated in 19837
A Well, I naVe an opinion as to wnen it was

contaminated.

] - A3 to every sSite ctnat's off-site chac
contaminated?
A I nave an opinion as to the migration mechnas

and how they worked on thnat site and over tne peric
time ;ney were working and tnat tney would aave car
dioxin to various media.

Q That's the opinion you gave yestéraay
wnicn was tae c:ansmi;sion mecnanisms'wete in effec 
from day one?

A Most Of tnem were, yes.

Q Rignc, out aren‘t I corract, sir, thac
you'verdone no atudy to know now mucn'dioxin'was
exiting the HewarK plant at any given ciame, corrace
A deli, thac's correcec.

Q .Ahd you've done no study or the
discriodtion Or aioxia ian the orr-site locations?

A I've only reviawed che reports, some Of cne

 MAXUS026922.




C

10

il

12

13

14

15

20

21

2

23

4

25

WOULLSK1lll-Crosas=doser _ 38

reporcts, aot all orf chem that give tne OLrf-site
distripucion or dioxin.

2 BUut 1L you dJdon't KnNOw aOW .aucn dioxia was
leaving Newarx wnen, ctnen you can'c Kndw wnan qidxin
£irst ait properties orrf tne site, can>you? |
A Well, [ tnink tnat's two airrereat xssués. When
You say now,mucn dioxin such as.poundé or ouncas or
grams, the Juantirication is not availaple rfrom tne
aata oase. Tne ctiming of tnese releases, taough, is
availaple rrom an understandiang of tne aigratioa
mechanisms of the plant.

Q- Let me put it another way. You have no
way or telliag us now at whnica == 1n wnica year any
particular orr-site locacion pecame contaminated with
dioxin to a level ctnat tne regulators nave supsaguently
reguired tnat it oe cleaned up?

A -~ That's correct, as regards any location in che
neignoorhood or‘any speciric location in ctne river,
that's indecerminate as to wnen any one location
Off-site was contaminated.

Q You'‘ve given us an opinion taat tnis plant
Jquring the period 1951 co 1969 was a typical planct,
Opinion Nuaper 37
A Yes.

Q NOowW ==-

. MAXUS026923
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A It was cyplcal a3 regaras to uiscnarge or
errfluencs.

Q Now, be:wéen 1951 and l§69,'now aaany
cnemical »planes naa you‘oéen i3 otner taan tne one in
#DICA yOu were a summer employee? |
A Weil, I worked at.various tlmes 1n piancs in
Texas, one pianc that I can remémoer'in particular, ana
a plant iq Fiorida and several p;ancsroutside tne
United Scates.

Q I'm asking you now just 30 tae record*s
clear petween ‘51 and '69. |
A Yes, anu.cnese are tae dates, plus I was in and
around plants in tne Boston area wanere I lived anga

worked, out aone orf tnem were consistent proaucts in a

pPlant. I was just ac a plant or nearby a plant during

tnatc periodad of time.

4 Now, these are cnemical plaats?
a Yes.
9 30 aow amany caemical plants does tnat .ean

yOu were in oetween *51 ana '6972
A Well, cthe pilanc in Texas and tne planc 1n
Floriaa P4US CwOo in Venezuela :a; an American compaay
and cor the same compahy 1n Lidya ana Arupa.

Pnose are one, twWwo, tnree, ifour, Live, six,

Texas, Florida and tnree countries outside cae United

MAXUS026924
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States, I was in those planc3 on numerous occaéions.
pernaps 60 or 70 airrferent occasions ian cnpose plants.

In tne doston area, I did aot nave a workiag
assignmaat cthat I can rememger”inaide a_cnémlcal planc,
out we aad a aumoer Or product3 around ctne wa:érftont
that was adjacent to plants.

2 And at a0 time wnen youiwefe in any of
tnose plan;s_wés 1& your responsionilicy :to oe concerned
witn cne etfluencts from_cnose plants. 1Is tnat correct?
A that's correcect.

Q Now; you 2also did otner work rLor biamond;
that is, you've worked on the Greens Bayou?

A Yes.

Q And wnen did you work on cthe Greens 3ayou
planc?
A Ssetween 1980 and I'm still working at the planct

uanaer ditfetenc owners at preéeﬁt.

Q You pegan working on ctnat project in
rougnly 198072
A Yes,

V] And am I correct cnac that was a situation

1nvoilving an lavestigation or ooth on ana OLr-sitce

conctaminacion --

A Yes.

Q -= @inanacing cfrom a Diamond facilicy?

 MAXUS026925
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A ~ Yes.

Q  And could you just tell us in a couple of
sentences wnat was tae nature of tne pollution
emanatiag from :de Diawond facitity 1a Greens Bayou?

A It was arsenic ana cettacnldride.

Q - Ang agow was it exiting cné planc anag
getting intd off-site?

A I tnink aill or tnis was sgosurface migracion 1t
I remempder well, pius tnere was oecaus3e Of suosurrace

Jargratioan, tnere was a surrace water reizase,

Q You also worked for the HMuscle Shoals
piant? |
A Yes.
8] This was fo:'Diamond?
A Yes,
Q When were you rectained to wor; on that?
A I don't remember exactly. I think it was arouna

1981 or 13982.

Q And wnat was che nature of your assigqmen:
there?
A We lianvestigated tae mercury levels in an on-site
lagoon tnat was out Orf 3service.

9] And wnat was chne purpoée or @making thac
investigation?

A To determine tne distrioution of aercury in chnat

~ MAXUS026926
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lagooa iocation.
Q I know tnac, out wny dia you care?

A Well, I'm not sure wnat cthe purposs =-- tae

-PUCpOsSes Or the lavestigactioa was used co ginally

Jecause wve aiu'not wOorK at ctne élant to do anytning
apout it. We merely made an invesctigatioa of the
gistridutioa Or mercury so I don't Know waat use was
made Of Eﬁac informacion.

Q All rignt, in your expert opinion,. way
would somepoay want Lo Know? |
A Nell. I think tney,wént t0 KNnow wnat tne
distrioution or contaminants would oe on cheir site
because chney wuignt nave to 4o someching about it.

Q Including, tfor example, making sure it

doesn't get Off the sitce?

A Yes.

Q And similar, you work ac Diamond's plant

at Mobirle?

A {es.

Q And do you recall wnen ctnat assignment
came? |
A. I woula ctnink 1983 or 1984,

Q Ana, again, you studied contamination ac

:neldoolie 3ite?

A -~ Yes, there was one ieak in a lagoon cnat we

 MAXUS026927
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studied to see if it nad released contaminants.
Q Ana wnat was the caonciusion?
A That cnere was a release to cthe ground water on

tie plant site aear tne iagoon.

Q Ahd aiso you worked at Castlé Hayne?
A Yes, | .
Q Ana wnén didryou WOrLK there?
A -Began working tnere, I pelieve, in 1932 and we

are continuing WOrKk there with a dirrerenc owner.

Q Ana wnat was the proplem for wnica 7ou
ware oJrougnt to Castle Hayne?
A There was a caromium leakage priﬁarily tahrougn
the rloors of tnat piant into the ground wacar.

Q  all rignc, and wnat was tne nature or your
study?
A - Tne distrioution orf cnromium ian tne ground water
and ctne design of a remediation program to remove cae
chromium.

Q Wwhen you say the ground wacer, did you
investigacte wnetner tne ground wacer invoivea --
whiether the conctamination included contamination of

jrounda water wnich was not on the s3ita?

A We lavestigated cne perimacers of tne plumes, .

tne area oOr tne contamination wanich was in tne area or

tne 3site, S0 we concluded cnat tae contamlnation was

MAXUS026928
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A0t Orr cne piant sitce,

8] And cne scteps you COOK were Jdesigned co

ensure tnat cae plume did not move to leave cne sitce?

A Taat's correct, we designed 4 system o witndraw
tne piume ovack.

2 On Page 6 or your report, Doctor
Wolfskill, you made rerference to tranamission of dioxia
in organic liquids, wnact did you mean oy “orgaaic
liguiua®?

A Jell, an organic liguia would ve water tnat nas
séme otaner kind of organic liquid in it and for the
applicacion at tne 80 Lister plant, it would oe other
organic cnémicals that are in the water.

Q - That is other organic cnemicals cnat can
oe found at the Lister Avenue site?

A Yeé,vcnat weie found at the site,

Q Ana do I understand your report corractly
to 1naicace tnat dioxin round in arsoLucion in an
organic liqguia is hore mopile, i3 tnat wnat Page 6 of
your report describes?

A weli, 1t's not any more mopile, out it can move
tarouga cae ground water pnase in aign concentrations
caan 1t can 1in pure wacer.

¥ - Okay. Now, I'm correct chac -- Juestion

withdrawn.

 MAXUS026929
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MR, JOSER: B3ear witn me a momenc, your
- Honor.
THE COURT: VYes.

Q Wicn respecc to Qpinion Jumber 4 aopout
migra:ion; am I correcct, sir, tnac any migrac{on tnatc
18 occurriag r£rom ctne Lister Avenue site since; let's
3ay, July 1983 is gg_min;mia.

MR. FALLS: Object to tane rorm of the

Juescion.

THE COURT: Why gon't you rescace it.

'Q Would youw agree witn me that any dioxia

escaping from cne Lister Avenue site since July 1983 is

‘minimal?

MR. PALLS: I opbject to thne rorm of tne

question. In one sense, all of these things are

- minimal since we're talking one part per million

Oor cten parts per aillion, I chinx‘furtner
definiﬁioﬁ-is necéssary.

'THE COURT: dell, I don't cnink rurtner
dezrinicion i3 necessary unless the witness is
confused oy ctae guestion., Is it a guestion you

can sensioly anawer?

THE WITNESS: wWell, I can give a gqualified

answer wnica will give iy interpretation orf tne

Juescion.

- MAXUS026930
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THE COURT: Very we;i, 3o aneaa, please.
A I ovelieve ctne amount tnat is oeiny raleased
undaar cutrenﬁ conditions and conai;ions.since 1963 --

v ‘83.

A - in 1983 are very mucn less caan migranioh
pr;or 0 ctnat parioa.

) | Okay, 1it's opeen now five yeacs, JUut wnen
aia you £irst work on chis facilicy?

a 1983,

2 Okay, 30 jou'vé oeen cnere tivé Jears ana
tne‘pién: has vasically oeen tne same £or tne last five
years or ctne site nas vasicaliy peen ctae same since
tney put tne tarp on wictn tae ekceptibn 0L a smokestack
that was takan down aad éome parrels that were removed,
rigne?

A. ﬁo, tnere's one mdjor change in cthe site during
tnat period or time and that is che adjacent site, 120
Liscer Avenue, contains several nundred, it's aearly a
thousand ;arge containers chat nave so0il and debris ana
sélvage material tnac came rrom orff-site chat were put
DacKk at cthis site and tnose macerials are not covered
Ry taryp.

Q Yean, I want co direct your actention
3impiy T©O tne site Known as d0 Lister Avenue 30 I'a

excluaing 120 Lister Avenue.

- MAXUS026931
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A A;l rigac.

Q 80 Liscer Avenue is ctoday wica cne
gxception OLf tnat smokestack and varrels essentially
tne same ~-=- in tne same conaition ic was commenciag 1n
and atounquuly 1983. Correcc?

A I tnink caac's correce.

Q - And during those Live years, you're not

Juggestiag that any dangerous amounc of dioxin nas peea

leaving tnat 3ite and concaminating dewark, dew Jersey,

are you?

A Weil, I tnink it‘srpossiuie that concentracions
in exceés oL onerpart per villion can be leaving that ‘
Site during this period of time. .

Q Amount3 of dioxin are leaving thac sitg
surficienc to éonﬁaminaté someplace else oy one part
per oillion?

THE COURT: The one part per oillion is
concaaminacion so if one paft per pillion Joes
ou:; tnat's coo auch.

Q Let me ask it aﬁotner way. Have ydu
aavised your client Diamona co ctake any turther steps
detween July 1983 and coday dther taan tney have cto
prevenct aigracion rfrom 80 Lister Avebue?

A NO .

MR. JOSER: Tnaak you, ybut_ﬂonor, aotaning
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turcner.

4R. KOEPFF:  In light of one of your
dHonor's queétions, Mr. Calogezérsaid I couid use
one exnibic.

MR. CALOGERO: I dia allow nim.

THE COURT: Very weil

THE WITNESS: Anotner quiz?

CROSS~EXAMINATION BY iiR. KQOEPFP:

Q  Dr. Aolrskill I've Put in front orf you
derenaant's Exniolic 690, - fhis i3 an article :rom.cné
Journal Orf American Waterworks Association rrom 1945
enticled “Chemicail quineers' Approaca to Industrial
Waste Proolems.* Have you seen a Copy Or tanls article
verore today?

A "I don't pelieve so.

Q Okay, let me just guickly go tnrougn ict.
On the rfirst page orf ctnis exnibit in‘tne ilower
riganc=-nand corner, woula you agree with the statement
there that this is now a stacement made at least aa_of_
1945, "Industrial wasce §§11ution Of streams aas
progressed co cné point wnere aany puolic water
3upplies are now aenacea“? would you agdree to cae
trucn orf tnat stateaent as or 19452
A fes. |

Q Would you agree to tpe cruca or cnac
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statement or cne accuracy or taat statcement “also
arfeccteu 1s inauscrial utility of tnose screams*“?
A i uon‘ﬁ Know wnat ctals author .aeans oy
“iauuscrial actilicy of chose écreamé.“

b Okay, let‘'s move on cnen. The sentence
carrying over from cthe oo:tom.or tnis page co cne nexc,
would you agree witn che acluracy or cnis statemeat as
Of 1945, “aguatic lira in @aany streams is menaced if
not nowWw extiact*?

A Thnac's correacet.

Q Reading on, would you agree that I'a
talxxné now again about.cne accuracy orf these
statements as or 1945, “many streams now nave oniy a
limitea recreational value wnile otners are enclrely
unzxt Lor recreational purposes.,”

A Let me give one qualirication ﬁo oe clear.

We'‘re ctaixking apout 1945 wnica is a pPeriod or time taac

1 nave not mage very much study on tnis issue, Dut it's

Certainliy my opinion tnat what is Deing discussed»nere
propanly occurred in a aumper of locations in tne
Unitea States, not everywnere in the Unijted Statesa, ouc
& aumper Or locations. I nave no reason co doupt ctnese
are noct correctc in 1945,

Q All rignc, out you've given cesciaony

apouct what was Xnown or hOC Anown and wanatc was or
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concern Or wnat was not Of concern in tne 1950s and
19608, nave you noc?
A Yes.

2 OKay, ana wguldnf; Yyou nave to 1a order to
give chat opinxon Know wnat was OL concern as or, lec's

say, tne 1940s?

A Not necessarily.

Q  wWeli, You don‘t think 1f 3ometning was or
concern in tne 19340s ic wasn't scili orf concernbxn tae
1950s7?

A Well, fo? purposes of this’case, I iookea at
what was actually or concern ia ﬁne 1950s. Tnese
concerns still remain ih 1950 and I'm not objectiag
thact they were not alsé qoncérns of cthe '40s.

| Q Turn to Page 335, it's tne third page of
tnis exnioic, and I nave to apologiie £Oor the poor
Jualicy of the copy; It was telecopied to ae iast
nignt and I'm reading in the middle orf tne lert-nand
column.

Again, I waat to Know your expert opinion
as to waetner in 1945 you oelieve this is an accurace
stacemeac. “The prooiem-or induscrial wastce," 1
Ooelieve ic's aisposal, “3nould receive tne same
consideracion as any processiag problem.” wWould you

agree witn the accuracy of ctnat statemenc?
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A well, I doa't nave a 0asis for ctnat wecause this
i3 veing comparea To any'ptocessing problem and I'm noe
versed enougnrin ptocessing Problens, you'&now, to
eIrect a comparison OL tnose cwo.

Q It's fair to Say you wouldn’t disagree
with it or you'‘re not in a position co disagree wicn
ic? | |
A I don‘t have a Qasis to disagree witn ic and I
don't nave any autnenticacion to aisagree wicn it.,

Q Let .@e r2aa on and gee as or 1945 tais was
an accurate statement and again I nave to apologize for
tae poor quality. “It Snouid ve supjected to an
approptiate amount or researca aad engineering aﬁd
economic codsidetation in‘detetmining tne .aost rfeasiole
ptOCedure.’JVWOuld yYou agree Qitn.cnac statemént?

A 'Oh. I tnink tnac's rignc, ic should be Subnject
to an appropriate level.

Q Now, letrme go down a little pit farcner
4t the pottom or chne Page. Would you agree with tne
aécu:acy'of this statement as of 1945, Itfs calxing'
aoout classification or wastas and in éoout the tnird
séntence it says “variacions* anag tnac's ctalking apout
wastes. *“Variations will ooéiouSly exist among
industries engagedq in differentc ctypes of opefa:ion'and

aven in tae same type or iandustry depending upon che
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actual processes employed.* Would YOu agree witn tnac

stacemenc?
A : Well, wnat variatioas are we talxking aoouc?
Q dell, way don't we Jdo over direccly to cae

rignct Of that in tne coluan ia cne parégtapn tnat
pegins “cnemical waste,* do 7ou see :hat?'
A | Yes.

e Would you agree ctnat “chemicak wasces wili
QJe Of widely divergenc cjpes and may contain aay orf tae
Anown cnemicals and compounds aepenaing on cae raw
materials used in cne patticuiar indus;ry, tne
étocésses involved ana tne tfinal ptoduqts
maaugractured*? |
A Yes, I oelievé that's correct.

Q Now, turn co the next page, Page 336 under
tne aeading “Internal Plant Studies.* Do You aave thnac
Page . in frdnt or you, sir?

A Yes,

Q Would you agree cthat tnis was an accurate
3tatement as or 1945 and_I'm reading, *in any plant
faced with é pronlem of Creacaent and disposa; Oof 1ics3
inauscriai trade wastes, invescxgaciods witnin cae
flanc ictself snouid rirsc ve conaucced"?

A Yes, I caink any plaat raced witn a problem taac

investigation woula ve oae or cne rirsc sceps.
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Q ~Now, let me skip over to tne second column
on tals page, che Paragrapn beginaing “arcter."  would
You agree as tco tne‘accurécy Or cthis statement as or
1945, “arcer ctne .incternai 3tudies nave peen compleced
ana c¢corractive Steps nave peen taken, a miniaum
Juancicy orf wasce will dccually pe 1eav1ng Che mill and
will oe in a minimum juancity of water'?

A well, I tnink chact is, yOou 20w, it's exactly
the 1ssue tpat tne amounts or releases are aecermined
DY puolic policy wnicn is a very locaiizea or site
specitic area. S0 tnat cne definition or "minimums* in
tnese cases I tnink are actually defined oy tne
execucion or puonlic policy at a particular plan: site.

Q Now, let ilé SKip on now to Page 338, do

you nave tnac page ia front of you?

A Yes.

Q first or all, let me read tnis to you and

ask wnecher You were aware thac activated caroon

-rfiicracion systems were availawoile for use in induscriai

waste disposal systems as'gatly as 19452

A 1 gon't know wnen they oegan, oput cnéy are-an

old mecnoa orf waste creataent. |
Q Now, I'm going to ask again whetner you

would agree as of 1945 wita cne accuracy or canis

scatcement, “Conéti:uencs founa ia certain induscrial
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trade wasctes can oce removea by adsorption® ~-- tpat's

-d=q. “FPor example, on activated carbon, tne caropon can

oe'suoseqaencly‘tneated Lor scripping or tne adsorpea
inaterial cnerepy accompiisning racovery or wne
materiali“?
A Yes,FI understand cha: €0 oe a common process
treatment aecthod ana cais is the treatment metnod that
tnéy finally decided on ac tnils 80 Lister planc,

2  Ana it was a common ctreatment mectnod as of

1945, was it notc?

a I don't nave any data co Say now commonly i: was
used. ‘

o] But you're not in a posiction to disagree
with it? |
A No, I can'‘t.,

MR. KOEPPP: Ho furtner queécxods.
THE COURT: Aay rfurtner guestions?
MR. CALOGERO: Yes, your Honor.
THE COURT: Go anead. |
CROSS-EXAMINATION 3Y iR. CALOGERO:
W _ Is it your testimony tnat tne actitudes
and perceptions of cnemical Manuracturers in cne 1950s

ana '60s was such that they would discnarge errluents,

~contaminants ana pollutancs 1ato rivers aaa 3treams?

A - Tnat's c¢orrect.
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d And it is also your ctescimony, Or.
Wolfskill, cnat cne regulatozy.auﬁnoricigs Laac 2xiscea
in cthe 19508 and '60s ir they existea accoraing to your
ctesctimony allowea 3ucn discnarges co take place?

A Well, I tnink they ailowea suen discnarges to
taKe place as caey consigerea were appropriace.

Q Now, isan't it true, Jr. Aolrskili, ctnat in
the 1350s, there existed an ancicy callea Passaic
Valley_Sewétage Coumilssion?

A Yés. that*s wnat»ﬁne record says.

Q And isn't it true tchat you; in fact, spoke

to dr. Lubetkin wno was cha former chnierf engineer of

that commission during the"SOS and '60s?

A Yes.
Q Isn't tnac correcc?
A That's correct.
Q And you had a cen-minuce.convetsation wicn

nim prior to tne suomission Of your report in cnis
case. 1s tnat crue?
A " Yes.

Q And, oy tane way, ﬁas there anyone else
:nat'par:icipated in tnac pnone conversatction :natryou
fdad witn dr. Luocetkain? |
A I tniak dr. Spivak was on tne phona,

2 Dia dr. Spivax 3ay aaything co dr.

MAXUS026940



1d

11

12

13

14

15
16
17
18
i9
20
21

42

24

25

‘woxzss;ii-Cross-Caiogero T

Luoectkin aoout wnat ne wanted £rom Mdr. Luoeckin wich
tegard to information apouc tne Passalc Valiey Sewerage
Commission?

A Wwell, I can'c oe coo accurace 4aoout wno said

wnat, ouc I cniak I asked Jdr. Lupetkin wnat I was

Looxing roz'and-dr._Spivax on cthe pnone zntroducgd aia
tO0 me. '

Q And all or :tanils took place in cen ainutes,
Is tnat correcc?
A - Well, more or less, I dian';‘cime it.

Q Ana arfter chose ten minuces, you were
satlsried that you anaa done 4 thorougn investigation

into cne Passaic Valley Sewerage Commission. 1Is thac

correcc?
A I don't ﬁnderscand investigation into tne
commission. | |

Q Well, you called Mr. Luoetkin and you

Spoke wita iMr. Luoectkin pbecause YOou wanted to learn the

lntaraction oetween che Diamond plant and the Passaic
VaxleYVSewerage Commission in tne 1Y50s and 1960s. 1Is
cnat cortect?

A N0, I nad a 51m§1ef Juestion c¢nan tnat. I asKkeg
1lm wnat was tne violation record or thatc planc_and how
aia ic compate wlcnh otner plants in cne area. 2L

Q And Ar. Lubetkin in. chose ten miautes was
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aole co redemoet axactly what cook place in tne 1950s
and '60s 1n regard to Diamona Alxkali ana tne otner
plah:s tnatc raﬁ aiohg tae Passaic River, is that your
nestimony?-

A No, as a ma:ﬁer of rfact, he didn‘'t rememder
bDecause nis response was I don't even rememper aanytning
comiang up éoout the company, out I do rememoer geveral
otner companies.

ACter that convers3ation, ae procureu records
riom'tne Commission co agtuaily see wnat cae violacions
recd:as were and ne rouna one. That was tne 1956
violacion taac we5ve seen the evideﬁce'on and ne
furnisned those recoras later.

Q But didn‘t Mr. Lupetkin furnishn tnose

‘records cto you supseguent to the issuance Of your

reporc?

A : That's correct.

Q So again, Dr. Wolfskill, I ask you isn't
it correct tnat your investigation into Che interaction

oetween Passaic Valley Sewerage .Commission and tne

piamond plant consisted of a ten-minute conversation

oectween you, dr. Lupectkin aana Mr. Spivak aaa tpat was
wnat information you naa wnen you Jdid cais report'wnicn
is now in avidence?

A Tnatc's correct, chac's cane iarormacion I nad ac
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tne cTlme tn2 report was writctten.
2 And isn‘t it crue taat you later came co

learn from otner inrormaction tnat was' provided to you

oy 4r. Lupetkin chat cnere wWere a4 aumoer Of violacions

Ry biamqnd Alkali for dumping into tne Passaic River?
A I don;t'oelieve tpat*'s correct. I oelieve a
ceview or the recoras_tnat ae furnisned snowed taat
cnis plann'did not nave cne as sarious a vidia:ion'
record as otner plancs. |

2 As otner plaats ==
A So looking at this cecord did not change my
conclusion in tnis report.

Q Did you 100K atc the otner violations oY
otner plants in tne 195087
A I reaa the list tnat ne TOOK excerpts chac ne
rfurnisned in tnese documeats and I read carougn chose
to see wnat other vioiations taere nad Deeh.

Q And arter you read tprougn tnose

‘violations, is it still your cestimony taat thera was

no regulacory agency tnat was concernea apout
Jiacnarges into tne Passaic River 1in tne 1950s ana

'6Us?

a No, I tnink jusc uwne revecrse, tcthera was an

active agency ctnat did take concera aobout cne

discnarges in cwnatc river. 1Ia ract, there was a

- MAXUS026943
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fisn-xili kay up noretn. in tne upper ra2acnes Or the
riyer tnat was a amajor violation anﬁ a Jnuctdown td stop
tnat oy tnis Commission.

30, you Know, I incerpra:ed :n;c chey were
actively on cne joo, and ih some areas, cney naa
certalin concerns. Ia some areas or chat river, chey
nad certain conceras and in otnet'a:eas. tney-nad less
concern., That's ay interpretation orf wnat I've seea or

the recora or tne Commission's enforcement actioas

~along tne river.

Q My Juestion ﬁo you. Dr. Wolgfskill, is
after'naving reviewedq tnbse racorda wnich Mr. Lupetkin
turnisned to you supsequenc co ﬁhe issuaance Orf tnis
report tnat you 3cill wili tescify and yet you arce
3till testifying cnat there was no concern oy
regulatOty autcthoricties in New Jetsey apout discharges
into rivers and streams?

MR. FALLS: 1 oﬁject, your Honor, ae just
answered ctnat Juestion.

THE COURT: He nasn't cestirfied to tnat
efrece.

THE WITNESS: Let me near the guestion
agaia.

AR. CALOGERO: 1I'li repnrase tae Juestion.

THE COURT: You don't nave to answer ctnac
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one, asKk anotner one.

Q2 Is 1t your cestciamony tnat caere was o
éoﬁce:n-oy any regulatdry agencies in tne 19508 and
1605 aoout discharges iaco rivers and streaas?

MR. PALLS: 1 opoject. |

THE COURT: The answer's nd, okay. That
jus: isn't ais cestimony. His cescimony is che
level or concern, not what it i3 now as a oroad
proposition.

2 Lec's go into cne level or conéerd. Is 1c
your cestimony tnat tnese regqulatory autnorities aid
Aot nave concern over ctne amounts tnat were oeing
discnarged ianto rivers and streams?

A Thac's tdo specific for me to understand their
concern; Wwhat the recora shows is chat they had less
concern in tnis portion of tne‘Eassaic River chan they
nad in'o:ﬁets, that's one tning that tne record shows.

I pvelieve tney nad some level oOr c¢oncern in ail
reacnes of tnat river ihcluding wnere this plant wés
locateada,

8] My cestimony -- my guestion to you aow,

pr. WolisKkili, is were taey concerned apout tae amounts

Lnat were goiag into ctne river and I'm referring now to
the entire scrip . of river?

A vnat I noticed 1n the record is cnat taey were

 MAXUS026945 .




10

11

13

14

15

16

17

138

19

20

21

22

23

24

~Wodgskili-Crosa-Calogero ' 2l

Primarily concerned aoout thiags lixe odor or oil sneen
or visiole cnings iike color and apout pd and I never

saw a reference that ctney were concerned apbouc release

“OL a certain <Kind of orgaaic chnemical in a certain

concencration., That's é concern tnat did not get
developeda in nnis‘councry very well until arter tne
mid='70s.

Q W#ell, isn'c it true cnat those records
contained a referance in Feoruaty.or darcn o 1956 :nat
tne rPassaic Valley géwefége Commission cited tne
Stanaara Dye anda Fisning Company in Pacerson wnere its
aye waste overrlowed rrom a collection pit on its
propercty into tne civer?

A _ I don't remember that incident, out it's

- propaoly one I saw in tihe record.

Q And isn‘'t tnat the type of practice ctnat
Passailc Valley Sewerage Commission would oe concerned

abouc in cthe 19508 and '60s?

A Oh, I tnink the record shows wnat they were

‘concerned abouct and, you kKknow, it snows what their

action was towardsa chose concgtns.

o Doesa't ctne record of the Passaic Valiey
Sewerage Commission wnich you reviewed also show tnac
in Aprii 1956, FlintcolCompany was citaag rq: a white

discnarge Lroin a Storm Sewer cnat was going iato tne
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Pagssaic River and cnac that uaischarge was #racec to
sectling oeds or cne Fliatco Company where its cleaning
operatioans were in proéress? Is tnat tnhe ctype or
aiscnarge tnat che Passaic Valiey Seweragewbommissiqn
was concernea with 1n tne 195052

A fhg: nad to o2 one or them dDecause ic was a
documenced action.

VR Ana aren't those the same types OL
discnatges'tnat wera going on act tne viamona plant in
the 19350s?

A That's rignct, and we nave the record df wnat cne
Commission’s level of concern at this plant site was,
what it actually was,

Q Now, i3 it your ctestimony that tnere was
no concern ia tne 19508 and ‘608 by requlatory agencies
concerning gtouna.water contamination? :

A It was very minimal, if at ali. I'a sure ;neré
aust oe some‘places in cne United Stactes 1a those
periods or time chac tnere were ground water concerns,
OUt it was not a'cypical avent in any régulatory égency
tnat I Know oOf.

Q - I snow you wanat nas oeen marxed as
Jerendanc's 3xaipit 692. 0Verfendanc's Exhioict 892 is a
laoelea scatement or Ocrc Chemical Company 1n Jdicnigan

at 505 Agard Road in 3Section 32, Dailcon Townanip,
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Auskegon Councy and it's also aeaded an “order oOF
decterminacion.”
Isa't cals type orf concerns tnat were part
Of the staces in tais couﬁ::y; these were cne ctypes oL
concerns chat cnese states aaad Lor ground water
concamidation in tne 1950s and '60s?
AR. FALLS: I cnink tne witness saould
nave a cnance co read tne docunentc. |
THE COURT: All right, cake a iew amlinuces
tO taxke a look at ic.
A well, I've read aoout :wo-ﬁhirds of chis and I
caink ctnis is an order oL determinaiion in wnicn a
company applied to aischarge or inject cooling and
condensing wané:s. nﬁman sewétage and induscrial
process waters direcctly inco the ground wacer.

We're not talxing_aoout a leaking situation
here, we're talking aoout an injection well to use
ground watcer ﬁo dispose of tnese wasces and witnout
summariziﬁg‘it £t00 accurately, tnis commission
autnorizes chat witn certain levels or constituénts
chat can Je in tne water ctnac's injectad and on cne
Second page, it gives specirications of wnat are the

ranges of tne coataminants tnac w~ould »e acceptaole and

wnat would not. I tniak that's the general gist of

this order.
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Q 'Aﬁd would you agree with me tnat the Stace
Orf Micnigan was concerned apout ics grouna water, ctnen?
A ‘Well, cnat's correét. | |

Q Does tnis cnangeAjour testimony caat there
#as little concern aoout ground water concaminanion in
the lSSOs»and '6us? |
A Ay teStimpny is not in cne context Of a disposal
weil thdat is injecting wasce q;reccly into the grouna
water, ay cestimony nas to Jdo witn spills anu leaks
¢hat 2ater cthe ground water tpatc are not, you Knovw, a
conscious act like tais is Calkin§ about so I tnink
cnose are different issues.

Q So your tescimony now is that you're just
concerned about whether or aot any governhent agencies
were concerned about leaks and spills in ctne 1950s and

'60s from chemical plants in ground water. Is tnatc

-your cestimony now? .

A My testimony is that accidental leakage into cne
ground and, hence, into tne ground water receive very

iittle, probaply anot zero, out very little note tfrom

regulatory agencies in cthe *50s and '60s and cthac

opinion 4oes aot incluae disposal wells sucn as tnis
act is8 talking abouc.
Q NOw, dauring your research inco your

reporc, were you aware tnat the State or New Jarsey nad

... MAXUS026949 _
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a4 Stace Department of Healtn ana a Bureau of Public
deaitn Engineering pack in 1960?
A dell, I don't'rémemoer tne names Of tneir
agencies, out I'm 3ure cney nave agencies thact U0 cnose
sorts or functions.

Q Ana isn‘ﬁ_it trye ctnac their runctions
Were to go to cnemical plants androDserve wnether or

boc cercain eifrluents were seing dischargea into

streams and craexks?

A Wwell, I don't Know wnat ctheir, you Xnow, cne

cnarge of tnose agencies was. Again, I think it's
common practice that tnere are agencies like tnat wno
naie 31ailar kind or assignménts, put I can't cell you
exactly wnat the assignmants were of those agencies.

Q I snow you what has bpeen premarxed as

Defenaant's Exnipit 688 and 689. Have you ever 3een

reporcs of tnis type prior to today, Dr.'Wolfs&ill?

A 'well, Le:‘mg look at chese reports to see wnat
type they are. Well, I pelieve tnese types oOr agenéy
xnspectiéh reporcs are very similar to the functiod
that the Sewerage Commission in tne Passaic Valley
perrtormed and pernaps oecause :nere'was a river
commission, cthese agencies .nay not nave inspected the
plants along tne Passaic.

I gon't Know that pecause I don't rememper

_.MAXUS026950
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‘Seeing any reports fLrom cais agency ia tnis record, out

caese were tne Kinds Of inspéction.reports tnac cae
Sewerage Commission we;e pefrorming and i thinKk tnere
Wwere some ilke cnis on ctae Diamona piantc.

9 Isn't it crue, Dr. wolfsxkill, tnac :nése
teports inaicate taat as eétly as 1964, ana ia some r
cases tnere 1s a rererence cto 1959, tnac tnere were
regulatory agencies in ctne S:até of ilew Je:sey tnac
were concefned aoéut discnarges of efrluents rrom
cnemicalyplants‘in:o 3treams and creeks?

A That's correct,

Q And 1isn't it correct, ana looking at

_Exnioit 689, tnat tnese autnorities were conducting

analyses of the types of materials that were going into

screams in New Jersey. Isn't ctnat correct?

A Let me read tne report., Exhibit 689 is an
inspection or report of a particular plant tnat shows
that samples were taken anad certain general chemical
analyses were taKken to cnaracterize the erfluent.

Q cnaracterize tne errlugnt, is that wnac
your cescimony is?
a VYes, yOU XKnow, sucn as 5uspenaéd 3olids and
soiuole asn and tnere's a taple at tne and or tnia
axXnioit caac shows wnat cnay tested ror.

2 And that ctaple was aone, was it aoc,

.~
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oecause ctne stace agency cwnat did it was concernad
agout cne types Oor uilscharges iaco streams and rivers,
Isa’*t cnat correcﬁ?
A Nell, cnej aad 4 concern expressed oy Tne scope
OL cnis docuament. |

Q. Does ch;s cnange your cesciaony tpat no
one in tne 13508 ana '60s was concerned about the types
Of 2rriuents iato cne river and sﬁreams or New Jersey?
A Neli - | |

MR. FALLS: Obpject to tne Jjuesction.

THE COURT: ‘Mt, Calogero, tne witness has
never said thac. You kKeep coming oaék'to’tnat
and planting tnatc statemenc on aim.

MR. CALOGERO: I'll put cthe word “little*
in froant of concern.

MR. PALLS: I étill opject to it.

THE COURT: Well, now, tnere's an
arguanly, you <now, answeraple yuestion. Why
don‘t yoh just restate it a lictie.

d Dr. JWolrskill, was it your testimony that
agencies in cne 1950Us and '60s particulariy in New
Jersey nada little concern about discharges bf @rfluencs
incQ tne rivers and streams?

A I don't rememoer a statement chat is exactly

wnat sou just said. wWnat I said is tnat cnhere was
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licttlie concern of agencies‘ana not necessarily nNew
Jersey as regards tne release of efrluencs in rivers
comparea to tie concezﬁ taac cnere'is today.

Q So ict's your téstimony tnact Diamond could
Aot nave aacticipacea the concern tnat there is today,
18 tnac wnat you're stating?
A On, I tnink cnac's correct.

Q In ract, Dr. Wolrfsxill, could anyone anave

anticipated cnat concern?

A n Wwell, I aon't oelieve cnat anyone bpeéanxng in
those daces would nave anticipated that they were goiné
€O nave supbscancial environmental damage in a CERCLA or
RCRA or any of tnese current statutes in tnat sense
DackKk wnen ﬁ#ey were operating.

Q But, you would sctate, would you not, tnat
these documents do 3now that there was some concern oy
3ome agencles over the types of discaarges of eriluents
1nto tivers and streams?.

A Thac's correct.

Q And the document conceraning Ott Cnemicail
Company snows, would you not concede, tba: there Qas
3ome concera aoout a regula:ofy agency on gkound watet
contaminacion bacKk in ﬁnat timé/périod?

B Y Thac's correcec.

Q It's your testimony that tne coacarn coday
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i8 greacer and caat Diamona could never nave
an:icipétea chat yreat a concern?
A That's correcec.

Q JNow, you've stéted tnpat as part of cthe
industrial practices tnat you were compariag Diamond's
activities to cnat yoﬁ visitea or chat jyou naye v;siced
a'humoer oL plants in your kotx. Is tnat correct?

A Yes.

Q ' And ctpat some or tnese plants includea

Dow, Exxon, Sheil, Tenaneco. Is cnac correcc?

A Yes,

Q And again, irf I'm wrong, just ﬁell mefifm
wrong, i1s it your tes:imony tnac Diamond opetatéd
acqording to similar practices tnat those companies
operated in the 19505 and 160s8?

A Yesf

2 And is_i=>your testimony cha#_tnese
companies in the 19508 and '60s8 would xnowingly
aiscnarge into a river or stream afterrit nad opeen
warned oy a regula:oiy agency not to?r
A Weil, I dbn‘trxnoﬁ tnact I XKnow tne violation
nistory in each one or cnese plants rrom tae Qoinc or
view Of continuing to discnarge in akriver arcter they
nad oeen orderea 10t to qiscnarge anycaing into che

river. I wmean I interprec your guaestion, you Know, as

- MAXUS026954
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a precty severe rasctriction oy a regulacory agency. -
Q Well, you're aware of the anistory of tais

planc, tane Diamona plant, is tpat aot correct?

A Yes.

2 And you're aware cnat tnere wére
aischatgeS‘into tae rive; suosquént co an order ny tne
Passaic Valley Sewérage Commission to STtop tnose
dischnarges. Is tnat correct?

A I don't Delieve ctnere was an order tnac said

. 3TO0p all uiscnarges to cne pPassaic River.

Q There was a violation givea to them,
wasn't there?

A That's rignt, ouc not tne formet'étatément.

Q Isn't i1t true that che Army.Corps of
Engineers advised Diamonda in 1965 to stop discharging
into ctne river?

A Well, I don't Know tnacltnose ware tne exact
words usea Dy the Corps or £ngineers.

'Q’ I'a not concerned.aoout the exacc words
tnat nney‘dsed. Isn't ic true that they visitea che
plant in 13965 and told tne plant to stop aischarges
iacto tne.river? Tnat may not nave peen tae exacc woras
they coid the plant .nanager, out isn’c chat what they
aid? |

A I don't Know 1f tnac's wnat taey aid.

. MAXUS026955
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- Q Well, weren't you here wnen rC. Kenneay

tesciried?
A Yes.

Q Weren‘t you nere when 4r. Stewarda
testified? R
A Tha:'é corréc:.

Q Ana didn't tanese indiviauals cestiry that

cne Army Corps or Engineers came in 1965 and told tnem
ﬁo,stop discnarging?
MR. FALLS: I ooject, your donor, cesting
nis recollection orf ﬁne'testimony he neard.
THE COURT: Well, you can ask nim if ne
rememoers that. I ne does, you can ask a
fo;low-up question. Do you rememper testimony
along those lines that Mr. Steward indicated?
THE WITNESS: I don't remember ény
testimony that said all discnarges wnicn I
incerpret your Juestion to ne all discharges
to oe stopped and I tnink tnat's a significant
difference oetween all or stop some particular
s:ream;.
Q Tney were toid co stop 3ome parcicular
Stream. Is chat correcc?
A Tnac's wnat I remempber, yes.

Q Ana 1sn'c it true arter tnac was saiaq,
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tnere ware still discnarges'into the river?
A There dohtinued to oe discharges into tae river
as co ay understanuing :hrougnou: che operatioa.

Q2 That's your underscanding orf tae
opeta:ibns ac cne Diamond planc. Is tnat cbrrgcc?

A VThac's @y undersctanding.

2 Now, ay Juestion to you is is your
tescimohy.cnat the otner companies wnicn you Knew abouc
ana waicn you Xnow apout anag wnicn(férn»tne oasis ror
your opinion as to wnat induscraal practiées were ih
tne 19503 and '60s, is it your testimony chat tne
pracctice or tnose companieé were such thnat ctney would
Knowingly discharge erfluents iato a rive; atcer it nad
oeen oiderea oy a\tegulatory agency to s:op'a
particular discnarge?

dR. PALLS: I'objec: to that, your Honor,

Decause cné witness aas no:‘égnceaed.tnat they

were :old‘ho stop alil discnérges.

MR. CALOGERO: 1I'm assuiing that tnat
testimony 1s in che zegord, your Hdonor.

AR. FALLS: Tnere is no 3ucn testimony.

THE COURT: Weil, suppbse ;néy say stop
pu:cing'mutiatié acid into the scream and you
stop doiag tnat, out you Keep dumping Salt in, I~

guess you naven't violatea from wpnat chey tolid
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YOU tO 4O unles3 tne witness is aple tO remeaper

Wwaat cne airection was ana wnetner cnere was

_compliance witn the direction.

0} And you don'‘t :ecéxl wnat tne parcticular
violation was at tnat particular meeting 1is your
cesciaony, br. Woiﬁsxill?

A i don't understanda wnat particular violation
you're asking apbout.

2 fou dgon't understana waat cne particular
2rrluenc was tnhe supject OfF cne inveshzgatlon oy
Diamond in 19652
A No, I don't rememoer gnicn one was ian 'a5.

| Q 8ut a1t Diaﬁond was toid to sﬁop a

discnarge in 1965 and subsequently coatinued co

- discnarge a particular acid into the river after cnat

warning, is it your testihony cthat that would nave peen
a stanaard industrial practice in the 1950s ana '60s?
A It}may not anave oeen :ypiéal, out I tnink chere
are plenty of instances wnere specific releases
continued even arter cthat speciric release nad oeen
citea. I don't know if there's enougn of tnose to cail
that a typical practice, out 1t was 10T unNcComONn.

Q Tnaﬁ‘s tne way chat these companies inat
Jou visi:ed'woula nave done ouSLnéss, Is that correct?

4R. FALLS: Obpject to tne rorm of tne

. MAXUS026988
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Juescion.
THE COURT: wWell =-
MR. CALGGERO: Judge, ae said it's noc
Vun:ypical, it's a cypicai yquestion,
THE COURT: VWell; you <can respond :o.tna:.
THE WITNESS: I oetter aear it again.
THE COURT:"Nould'you_read_it pack slowly,
pleasé. Miss Yunas;.
(Wnereupon tne las: Juestion is read pack
Dy tae Court Reportar.,)
A well, I cnink there's a Lew or tnése companies’
that, in fact, continue co reieaserto surrace water
arter cnere hac'oeen cications or comments or concerns
issued py regulatory agencies. I don‘t, and as I said
oerore, I don't think tnat was tcne average practice,
out it was anot uncomamon.
Q | ﬁow._yOu did testiry :natlyou've read aﬁ

3ome point tne deposition of Jonn Burtoa. I3 tnat

correct?
A Yes.
Q- And did not Mr. Burton testiry at 3ome

poinct in chact deposition cdat there was an alarm system
at tine plant co warn people at the plant wnen ctnere
were going to oe ianspections oy regulatory agencies, do

fou recall tnac?

o MAXUS026959
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1 A Yes, I chink tnac's ia nis dgeposition.
2 Q Now, ay yuestion is is chat tne type or
3 practice tnat waS'dbne or would aave peen done 0y otner
4 companies in che 1950s ané *80s and speciricaliy tae
3 coapanies tnac yoﬁ'were ramiliar witf and whicn fofm
6 the 0asis ror your standard iaduscrial practices?
7 A " I gon't xnow exactly, out I do know that in
3’ | neatly;y every company I nave oveen in, aill visicors --
9 and this would inciude inspectors -= must report, check
10 S in, ahd tne notice oI tngir arrival 1is passed out among
11 the planc. |
12 I wmean I've peen in plaats wnere sucn‘é céll
13 caﬁe-in tnat ctne Texas Water Commission representative
14 or someoody is nere to inspect tne plaat, so I don't
15 oeliévé.taat woether tney're called alarm systems or
16 notice syscem, I think a notice system is very coamon
17 in plancs.
18 _' Q I'm aot referring to a notice system, I'm
19 | referring to wnat Mr. Burton stated in ais deposition,
20 an alarm system tO warn people at the plant to stop
21 -aiscnarges, tnac's the ctype oI systém cnat I‘'m
22 teferriag to, ana'my Juescion is 13 chac cnhe cype of
23 System that in your experience was coamon in the 1950s
24 ana ‘60s?
25 A - I don't tnink I nave enougn experieaca or uetail

MAXUS026960 ..
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LO KNOW WNnat operators did as a resuit or cne notice
that tnere's an iaspector in tne planac.

2 Now, you also read dr. 3urton's deposicion
wnere ne scatea ctaac on a regular oasis, acids were
Jqumpea into tne river wnen cne company coulid notlget a

Stoper market price ror ic. IS thac correcc?

F I peliave thnat was in 3urcton‘s testimoay.

Q Ana 1s it your tescimony tnat cnact
Pracctice oy Diamona was cae type Or 3tandard inauscriai

practice in cthe 19505 and '60s?

A I think so.
Q You ctaink so?
A Yes.
Q Tnink it was rignc?
A Well, I'm not in a position to judge puplic

Ppolicy. 1 mean =-
Q £xcusa me, Or. Wo;fssill. you usada tne
cerm ‘puolid policy~ wnen Mr. Cuyler --

AR, FALLS: Jay the witness answer tne
Juestion?

THE COURT: You aay ask tne Juescion, you
may aven asx.;t with vigor, out let Or.
dolﬁsxili Linisn.

THE WITNESS: I rinlsned amy answer, I'm

N0C 3ure 1c¢ was recorded.
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MR. CALOGERO: Only cne loudest et
recorued.
THE COURT: Leﬁ's read waoac yoﬁ nave oy
way or an answer.
(Whereupon-:he last answer is read vack by
tae Courtr Reporter.)
| THE COURT: You'‘re not 1a a position to
Juage pubnliic policy, do yod want to leave ic at
thac?
THE WITNESsS: Lec A€ just ieave it at
tnac.
THE COURT: 4r. Calogero, would you like
Lo ask a guescion?
MR. CALOGERQ: Yes,
Q Didn't you just testify tnis morniag in
response to a quesction oy Mr. Cuyler and‘you used the
term tais was puolic policy to do these practices in

tne ‘508 and '603) didn't you use tne words “puplic

policy"?
A . I used cne word “"puplic policy," yes.

Q And in wnat context aid you use it tnen?
A #ell, cne context I pelieve I usea it tnen and

what 1 generally oelieve is tnat discnarge practices as

well as, you know, tne iatended and tne unintended

version yenerally are responsive to puplic policy wnicn

. MAXUSD26962
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iﬁcludes-cne Lrameworx o lagislation or rules plus tne
entorcement or tnose rules and I ;ninx plént operacors
evgtywnere are sensitive to the combination Of those
twWo.

They parceive cnat as tne puolic policy wnicn
setsv:ne limits as vo wnét tney snould oe doing ana I
think Diamona was responsive to A2upnlic policy auring
‘tnese two decades.

Q ' And 4re you saying tnat tney were
responsive td puplic-policy and taac thac's the reasoa
tney dumped muriatic acida incoAcne river when they
couldn't get tneir market price?

A Well, I don't know taact the }eason tney dumped
ic was that puolic policy permitted it.

Q B8ut you did say puolic policy did permit
discnarge ot erfluents? |
A | It certainiy aid.

Q Now..aid you read tne testimony orf #Mr.
Ingley wno testifiea in cnié‘case very early?

A No. |

Q If I were to tell you that Mr. Iingley
testirfieda :naﬁ when ne visiced tne Diamond plant in the
19503 cnat ne nad to wear rain gear and ruooets in
order to visit tne plant, would you dispute me on that?

A Aell, I doa't nave any oasis to dispute it or

MAXUS026963



O

19
11
12
13

14

15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

NULLSRLLL-LLOSS=Lalugero o . - 79

accepc ic. .

Q ' And would it pe standard induscrial
ptac:ice in ctne 1950s and '60s né run a plant in sucn a
manner cthact people wno aad co viaic it would nave co
wear rain gear and runbers?

A ' Well, I think it's comaon practica in chemical
Plants thatc protective clbtnihg is generaily wotn_
appropriate to the conditions. I mean I've worn a lot
o:_érotecnive clotning myselt, you Kknow, up on various
visits co various plants,

Q Is ic your testimony tnat companies would
tegularly issue rain gear anda rupoers to others who
visited the plant?

A Well, it's veryrcommon today that tnings like
hard nats and respiracory tace masks and aeye goggles
and ruppber boots and I've peen in plants wnere tney
issué ne 5 Jacxet :6 wnere,

Q What about che '50s and '60s?

A I caﬁ recollect one time in '64 I wgs'in a planc
tnat I wish I had some protective clotning, pbut I
Jdidn‘t nave any, but I'ﬁ sure tnatc protéctive clotning
was 13sued at some places in tne ‘503 ana '60s and I
cnink in chis record, tnere is soﬁe indicacion chnatc
protective clothing suca a3 cnanges or_clothes. wore

clotnes, et catera, was a reature i3 chis planc.

| MAXUS026964
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2 During your review of documents 1n chis
case, did 70U review chose documencs wnicli concerned
the qondition QL tane ester plant in 1968.at tne Diamond
raciriicy? i
A I parcicuiarily rememoeﬁ somé,memo thact I gﬁeés
W#as trying to jusciry aoney ror renao;Li:acing{tnat
Plant and parc orf it, I tniak, was a description of
conditions in tne escer plah:.

9] - Ana didn't those condicions generaily
Stace tnac tne fLloors #ere failing daﬁge:ously ana cae.
footings underneath cank legs were completely gone
permitting sSaturation of so0il Qitn produacts?

A I éan‘c veriry tnhose axact words withouc looking
at tne documents, but thatc's My sSense of content, some
of tae content that was in tnat document.

Q And is it yohr testimony tnat tnat was
3dcandard inaustrial practice in the 1950s and ‘SOS'to
nave 3ucna conditions exisc? |
A On, I tnink tnac's correct.

Q And is it your testimony tnat even when
tnese'qondicions were found to exist that they would
continue To ex1St CO UpP tO a year arcerward?

A I don'c . nave a good way of judging wnat cthe
response --vcne average response time would oe at a

2laac ©o making some cnaage.
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W Are you aware or did you . oecome ramiliar
ac all, Dr. Wolfskili, wita cne operation of tne
autocliave at tne Neﬁarx fagili;y ana when I'm referring
€O tne aucoclave, I'm referring to cne vessél that
proaucea TCP?

A My only :amilia:ity wicn tne process in general
wnich includes cne aucoclave is :6 understang tnat wer

naa suca pieces caere. I'm not an axpert in

‘anderscanding wnat went on wictnin a reactor or any

- Other process aguilpment.

Q Do you uhderstand or did you nave an
underscanaing tnac it was ia tnat autoclave cnat dioxin

was creaced?

A That's wanat I understand.

Q And is it your understanding tnat the

creation of dioxin in tnat autoclave was related to the

’tempetature tnat was applied to that autoclave?

A I don‘t understand that situation or temperacuie
versus dioxin contentc. |

Q " And you nave no unaerétanding aﬁ all as co
aow :empera;ute relates to dioxin in che autoclave?
A Well, I don‘t anave sutficient inrormation cd oe
aple to give any‘teStimony on it. 1I've read che recora
and I generally kXnow wnat it says adout it, out tnat

woula not ve surficienc to give you aay testimoay on

_ MAXUS026966
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waact tae relat;onsnips ara.

Q Woulda‘c cnat information oe important in
your aeterminaction as to wnecner or néc dioxin was at
c@e‘si:e and where?

A Well, wnere, yes, because the autdclaves_
nappaned to bé a position wnere aioxin was; oﬁt tne
amount orf én impuricy produced in a procéss is aot a
@ajor consideration on tne types of aiscnarges that are
going on'at the plaht waich was ay stuﬁy oL chne planc.
Q What if a company nad che Knowizage tnac
it was creating a concaminant that was causing a
3erious sKkin condicion to its worxeté in tne 1950s and
'60s and had «nowiaedge that oy improvis;ng tne aetnod
that it produced a certaia product that it could reduce

that contaminant and reduce its effect among its

workers, okay, do you understand s0 far?

A Well, I think I generally understand your
nypothesis.
Q 'And wnat if thac company made a consc;ous

decision in 1960 and 1961 to not moaify its procedure,
out conciaue funning the proceaure so that it would
Keep prOQuc;ng nign amounts 6t that contaminaat, would
it Oe your testimony that that would pe a astanaard
1naus:tla; practice in tne 1950s and '60s8?

dR. FALLS: Object, your dHonor, this

. MAXUS026967
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or a procuction in cne plant ana ay tescimony is

@mecnanisms.,

‘witness has not given aay testimony aoout worker
neaitn and sarecy.

TSE COURTi de nas not, ais cestimony on
direc: Jdealc witn-discha;ges 1at0 ctae
environment soO we're going oeyond wnat ne
testiiiea cd. |

" 4R. CALOGERO: Well, your Honor, my sense
of environﬁenc inciuaes ctne envifonmentvtna: tne
worKkers were in and,v;ndeed, it's tne same
environaent wnica is now contamisateda and wnién
is the séutce Of tnis lawsuit and it*s the same
concaminanc --

MR. FALLS: Tnat's notc accﬁrate. your

'Honor.

MR. CALOGERO: It's aot accurate cnat che
workars Qerea‘t in thnis plant?

THE COURT: They were in che piénz, out it
you feel tnat you're competent to answer cne
quéscion, Please go ahead and ao itc, ar.‘
Wwolfskilil.

A well, I was goiang to say I am not compectent ﬁo'

answer tnat Juestion decause it speaks to tne operation

iimiced to tne uiscnarge into tae eaviroameac

PO
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Q In gaving your opxnion and in giving your
reporec, you weren'c concernea wicn cne proauction
processes ac tae plaht?

A Only T©Oo tae extent or waat tney Were and wnere
they movea aioxia atound 30 1 éould uqderstand wne:é
dioxia aigat encer cne 2aviroament.

Q ~  But isn't yoﬁr testxmoﬁy concerned witn
waat were cne stanaard induscrial practices of plancs
conce:ning-aisénarges and now they operataa tneir
equiphen: in tne 19505 and '60;?

A No, it's limited to discnarges, not to how they
operate cneir equiﬁmenc.

Q | So you'‘re not concerned at all witn how
Diamond operated ctneir equipment?

A-. I'm not competent to judge now they opera:ed
tneir equipmenc.,

Q Ddon‘t you think thnat it would be important

in giving your opinion to Know how they operacad their

equipment in tne '50s and '60s oerore you could give a
statement gnat it operated its plant in a typical
sanner Lor tne 1950s and '60s? |

A dy tescimony nas to do wicia the typical aacure
O the u;scna?ges O cne environment and not the
cypzcal Process operations or a planc.

2 You aren't concerned about caat at all?

.. MAXUS026969 _ .
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A | well, only to the extent chat I néed CO Kaow
wnere cneamicals are 19 order co unders;ano aow they get
aécess €0 tihe environmentc. |

Q . well, you snateufcnac 70U went on cni$
Lacilicy in 1984. Is tnat corréct?

A Yes.,

2 And at cnac cime, isn't it crue :hacvtne
facility had a ctarp over it?

A It naa 5 carp over ctne grouna. .

Q Tfhere was no tarp or anyctaing covering cwne
puildings cnere. I3 chat correct?
A That's correc:;

Q  And how aany cimeslftom'1984 up tO-tqé
time tnat you spoxerto Mr. Gordon Steward in April of
1987 were you at‘tnis facility at 30 Lister Avenue?

A' I tnink I went inside the rfence oﬁe otner time,
out I don't rememoer exactly when it was, put I've peen
CO tne 3ite ouctside the rfence prooaniy two or three
other times.

Q- vid you during tne time period 1984 to
wnenlyou net M:. Steward in April 1987 ever acudy any
drawzngs or gocuments apout caac plant?

A : Yes.
Q Dia any orf tneserdocumen:s.anc drawings

concern eguipment ac ctnat planc?

. MAXUS026970
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A fnat's tign:,

2 And 15 it your cestimony cnat up Jntil cne
ctime that you met.Gordon Steward, you nad no ide& wnera
aioxian could nave oeen created at tnac pianc?

A No, tnac's not corkect, I nad some information
“nen I was worKking at tae site.

Q - 3id you nave any.informatign'aoout where

TCP wenc croam one locaction at cne plant to anotner?
A - dnoever tne guide was tnat toox me tnrougn ailil
of tnese builainés. and I've forgot:eh what iadaviauail
tnat was} toid me we're now at thnis, we're at the
autoclave, we're ét somecning else, we'rea ac somectning
el3e so ne identiried all‘cneée items as we walked
carough tne plant, buc thac was in 1984.

Q . How long did you meet with Mr. Steward in

April 19877

A Practy mucn all day.
Q Ana nad You ever amet nim oerora tnatc?
A Actually I think I nave met him in some other

context, ouct I don't remember exactly where it was. ie

'nas told me tnat we naa met pefore on some otner type

oL Lusiness,
Q At cne ctime you met aim, ae was a

consultant ror diamond 351alrock, was ae aot?

A That's wnat I pelieve.

 MAXUS026971
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Q He was veing paia as a consulcanct. Is
taac correct?

A I guess ne was working on a donsultan:'aasis ac
a planc'in Alapama ror Diamond.

Q  So would it ve f£air co stcate that your
Sole <nowlaage anoutc tne plan; qu;pmen: and‘tﬁe
process at tnat facilicy came rroa dr. Steward anda the
arawiangs tnat you reviewea? |
A No, that'‘s not correct, I also aad a ﬁour of all
Che ejuipmenc ana was snown :né équipment and yiven atc
that cime cne description what it was.

Q But tnat cour did not include anytning
rejardiag now TCP was produced and where it went after
ic was prodauced?

A. No, I think it generally did out it's not, you
Know, somecthing tnac I rememperea well enougn to do
without Gordon sﬁeward‘s assistance r£or me co actually
put on tnat map where dioxin would be in the systeam.

Q » Going to che map and I'm going co refer
you now co Figure 3 wnicn contains tne dots, tne
circles and_cpe Xs.

Is it not corract tnat you nad cne
Lnrormaﬁion availanle to you prior to your meeting witn
ﬂ:. Steward as to tne locactions of dioxin at cne site

and what those £s, circles aad triangles represenced.
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Is tnat correctc?
A I nad cne inrormation wnere dioxin was 1n cne.
grouhd.

) And you went co Mr., sStewara aad ér:er
calking :o'Mz. Steward, you naa surficient.xhowledgg to
aortne,dot exnipit wnich is P-440. Is tnat corregct?
A . Yes. | |

2 And arter your conversation wicn ir,
Stewara, it's your testimony.you'nad sutfiCient
xnowleage €O draw Figdre 2 wnich céncerns lixely
contact zones ror dioxin. 1Is that correct?

A That's correcet.

Q And you chen used Figures 1 and 2 and
matcaned it up to therinformation that's in Pigure 3.
Is tnat.cotrect?

a No, we used tne information off of Figure 2 and
matched it wictn che test data out Of cne pKOJthS‘
reports in orde:'to get Figure 3.

THE COURT: dr. Calogero --

MR. CALOGERO: I have apbout iive minutes.

THE COURT: Go anead. |

Q But, Dr. Woltskill, you already nad che
infozrmation from Figure 3. Is tnat correct? You
already Xnew wnere aioxin wéé located on tne-si:e.

Isn‘t that correct?
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A Wwell, on ;ne ground, ouc oderora we did ctne
exercise, I aidn'tc RNOW wnera it was-on che plaat.

12 : well; wasa't tnat exercise really a
meaningless exarcise in lignt or the ract chat yoﬁ Knew
very early wner2 dioxin was locaced at tae site?

A Ho, f aon‘t think i1t was a meaningless exekcise.

Q You didn't nave to use tne informacion in

Figures 1 aad 2 to snow you wnere dioxin was located in

taa g;ound'uecause you already <new taat ihformatxou ia
1984. 1Isn't cnat correct?

A That's nair tae information and I knew tnatc
early. |

Q 3y the way, when you found tne missing two

" dots, wnat time was tnat, was it two weeks ago that you

round out you missed cwo docs?
A Yes.

Q And those two dots were in tne TCP
pufiiica:ion unic, correct?
A Yes.

Q ‘and isn‘c it true chat Ar. Stewara didn‘t
tel; YOu anycning aobout dioxin ac che TCP purificacion
4nic wnen you aect aim in 19872
A No, cnat's incorrect. On the éppenaix or my
teport, ne nas chose points aarked, we 3ust dian't pick

those up wnen we .nade Figure 1.

o

. MAXUS026974
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1 ' v} daen you rerfer co cne appenaix -
2 A The appenaix‘ot ay repbrt 1s Gordon Stewara's
3 Aotes,
4 2 == you're talxinQ’auouti:he A-1 drawings?
= A Yesf A=1 cniougnrwnatever taey are, 15;
3 | Q Now, your testimony earller-by Ar. Moser
7 was a discuééion or waeré aioxian was located or wnere
8 | 1t was not locatea orr-site. I3 tnac corracc?
_3 , A Generally, yes.
ld v} . Are you aole co give an opinivn as to now
11 aioxin got to the Hug Holdings property?
12 A well, I don't xnow wnere ctaat property is.
. 13 | : Q Wéll, it you‘don‘ﬁrxnow whnere it is,rtnen
) l4 you really can't give an opin;on, can you?
15 A ‘Well, ctnac's rignt, if I don't know wnere the
16 propercty is, it amigat noc oe in Newark.
17 Q. It is in dewark. Are you aple to give an
18 opiaion as co now didxin got to cthe Farmers HdarKkec?
19 A Wwell, again, I nave co naQe information to xnow
20 tnat cnac's in tne area ﬁha: téceived ai10x1n, you Know,
21 Lrom cthis plénc.
22 2 You aave, as you 31t hare cvoaay, you
23 caanoct yive an opinxén as to now dioxin got to cne
24 - Farmers darkec?
25 A NQ, uncil I iida out wnere cne Faramers darket

7..MAXUS026975 .
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1 is.
2 ' 2 Are you aole to give an OpP1aloa as to how
‘ 3 aioxin got to tne Newarx Box Board?
4 A ( do. $or
3 Q Are you aole to)an opinion as to now
° uloxxn.go: to Lockwood Avenue?
7 A Yes, I ctnink I rememoer wnere Lockwood Avenue
8 is.
3 ) Q Are you aole co give an opinlon as co now
o 10 aioxin got co Brady Iron and Metals?
i1 A Yes.
12 Q@  Isn't it true 1t got there pecause chere
< 13 was 30me eJguipmenct from tne 3ice puried chere?
B 14 A Tpat's 4y -understanding tnat aguipmeat from the
15 slte was taken.
< | | —
16 Q Thera was a specirfic cime period wnen tnat -
17 was done. I3 chat correct?
‘Cl i8 A I‘tninx it was.mofe ;nan Jne and I don't know
19 now many cime periods equipment was :aken to Btady.
20 Q Are ydu aple to give an opinion as to now
:L 21 aioxin qoﬁ Lo the Hilideman propetty? |
. 22 A I don‘t Xnow wnere cnac property is.
23 : Q I you'‘re not able to give an opinion as
“ 24 €O now 1t got cnere, ydu can't give aa opinion as co
25 wnen it got cnere. Isn't cnat crua?
C
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A well, I can’t give an opinion wnea it got to

tnat property wecause I aon’t know where that property

is.

4R. CALOGERO: All rignt, ao furener
quescions, your Honor. |

THE COURYT: Any amore defense?

AR. SHAHRIARI: Tom Snaariari for
Pirsmen's Funa. I don't «now if you:-ﬂonOt
wisngs tO cake a oreak.

THE COURT: WJell, I'a racner it we can
manage it finisn it and get the witness out of
here. We‘:e'trying €O ger nim oacx.down to
Texas this aorning.

CROSS—-EXAMINATION BY 4R. SHAHRIARI:

Q - Dr. Woirskiil, you'll nave to forgive ame
ir I ask you some guestions which show some'na{vete‘
witn regara tb soil and 3soil éonditions..but'can you
tell mé in':ne'fieidvof soil analysis, are tnere

different types Or categories of soil tnac nave oeen

aeveloped oy scientiscs?

A Yes, ctnere's several s0il classificacions

systems thac classicy different cypes Of soil.’

9] Have you ever made a determinacion of the

types or soils chat are underneatn tne 80 Liscer s31ce?

A '~ Yes, I've reviewed tne racords cnac gave cae
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- 801l classirications at tne site.

Q You personally nave noc made tne

determinations?
A I personally nave not taken cne samples, out I

reviewea the data and reviewaa the réports.

Q Okay, wnat are the types of $Soils thact are
undernéatn :a;s.site?
A There is a generail £ill macérzal tnatroccupies
the first several feec of tha site which is generaily
unaerlinéu QY an organxcusilc anxcn‘is aown aoouc 15
feet 6t 30 and underneatch that is a sand and gravel
Lormation. )

Q And anow rar below all of this is cnere an
impermeaole layer?
A Of those tnree strata, the most impermeaple
Strata is tne organic silt which is che second one
done.

Q Does ﬁnat define a set aquifer?
A The otganic 8ilt aefines the aquifer which sits
aoove it ia the £ill, it doesn't define the ground
wacters oe;ow-tnat layer.
Q Tngn an I correct in saying thac chere is
@ore tnan one aquifer than one site?
A . Tne word "aguifer* amay aotc oe che apptopriate

worda, out chere 1s grounda water in tne fill. There's

 MAXUS026978
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ground wacer in tne silt also and tnere's ground wacer
10 the sand. B3elow the sana at some aeptn there's
Dedrock, tnere's also ground water in chat DedrockK.

Q And am I correct 'in saying chat caere are

aifferent rates of wacer Permeapility in dirfereart

types of 30il?
A Yes.

Q'_ Has anyone ever aade a determination of
the race at wnica ground water permeates che soil ar 30
Liscter Avenue?

A Yes, I oelieve that's in che project reports.

Q Do you recall what the rate is?
A ﬂelx, generally. the rflow race in cxll is nigh,

I dont ; remeapner the Permeanility numpers that go with
1t, out it's a nigh rate of ilow. The organic silt is
a very low rate of flow and in the sand i3 an
intermediate rate ot flbw.

Q Now, ii one Knows the rate or rlow in
ground wacter, can one decarmine oy some formula noﬁ
rapidly ﬁaterials that are in the ground water will
move over ctime?

A Yes, 

Q Vaas anyone aever criad to make a

determination of how rapidly diozin or any of the

organic constituencs have moved over cima from the 80

. MAXUS026979 -
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“Lister Avenue site?

A Well, you just made a major distiaction wnen you
said how rapidly. Chemicals are MOVing in ctne ground
racner regimg pecause that can pe quita di:feren; Lronm
how rast tne giound water ‘itseli moves.

| I don't think an analysis nas oeen wade tnat
would predidt solar transport wnich is tne term applied
TO the movement Of chemicals in ground waﬁez. “Tne

investigation nas Primarily documented where ctnose

Chemicals are located in the ground water and in tne

80il at the time of the investigation.
Q But is it, in fact, scientifically

Possiole to make sucn a determination?

A That's correct.
Q And no one nas madé a determination?
A Well, I'm not sure no one nas.
| Q You're not aware of any?
A The dioxin dete:mina:ion is very difricult

because it easily adsorbs to so0il particles and stops,
out the water continues on, buc tae water‘could,nave
some dioxin in the water.

Q | Isn'tc cnat crue of DDT as well?
A I think DDT is nighly iasoluble and acts very
auch as dioxin does.

~

Q Okay, am I correct 1in saying as you aove

MAXUS026980
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furtner away tfrom a point source of contamination tnat
the contamination of the concentration of tne ground
water is generally less?
A I toniak tha;'s true for cne ground water. The
oniy ground waﬁet samples that were taken inside the
£ence are all in rfairliy close:proximity.

| I mean the site is smail and 30 I don'‘t think
there's a lot o{“§ifference ih tnoée. Tnere is an
ofr-sice ground water well which nas been tested in
the --

Q Sir, I don't mean to cut you §ff, put ny

Juestion 1s relatively simple. If I drop a certain

organic supstance onto the ground at point (a), as we

move furtner away from point (a), doesn't that

‘eencentracion decrease?

A Normally it does.
Q Okay, do we Know what direction the ground

water flows under the 80 Lister Avenue site?

A Yes.
'Q  Whica direction is tnat?
A 'vIn_the £1ll wnicn is the top layer, it flows

toward the river and I've forgotten ctne diraction that
it flows in che sand underneath. I doa't oelieve it's
north direccly coWard tne river, seems like it's at

3ome angle to che river flow or co cine river direction.

MAXUS026981
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Q Now, is the direction orf f£low of tne

‘ground water unaerneatn tne 80 Lister Avenue site

constant or does it cnange?

A I taniax it'é pretcy conétan:., I ddn't'oelieVe”
thac cpefe's a'lot df cnangeAin grouna water flbw}ih
either that £ill or chat firét»sénd velow irc.

Q How about the race of flow?

A I think tne rate of floﬁ cnanges. The £ill

is8 -- generaily, tne rate of rflow is largely determined
oy rainrall in these kinda orf avents. I don't pdelieve
the sand underneath tne silt is affected ma:eriaily by
rainfall.

Q Dr. Wolfskill, I'd like to cnange amy
quesciohsrand\go to cnis exhipit which has the Xs,
triangles and little zeros on it, holes on it. The Xs,
as 1 understand tht tescimony. represent tne highest
concentracion poiats, correct? |
A Correct,

Q And you de:ermined thnose rrom a‘stﬁdy that
was done prior to your becomxng involved in tnxs whole
tnxng or it was not a stuay tna: jou dxd?

A - wWell, it was a study chat I was working witn in

1984.

Q- on, good, OKay. Well, the aamplea thac

were useq to make ctne determlnacxon (03 4 \.oncentraclons
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Orf dioxin at tnese Xs, Os and triangles, now's the
sampling done? 4Ahat size sample was taken?
Spécificaliy, wnat size sample was takeh?
A I tnink they were generally ctnree incnes in
diamecter and aoout six inches long.

Q ' Okay, s0 at each one of those poihcs, you

TOOK a sample of s5ixXx Dy taree ianches?

A Generaily.

o] I take it ic was a cylindricail sample?
A Yes,

Q Did anypody ever mnake anotner sample,

let‘s say, a foot away from the rirst sample?
A I don't Know of ahy sampling that was dona that
c¢lose togetner.

Q How apbout two reet or three feet away?
A No, I don't think che -- I don't think a study
was made as to whnat we might call micro-distribution of
dioxin in horizontél terms of inches or few feet.

Q 80 there was ao erfort made to determine

the concentration in a given érea, but rather you just

~determined the concencration of dioxin on this specific

cnree-incn'place?
A Well, cthat's rignt, the samples ail represent a
small aiscreet pisce orf real estacte and the analysis

numoers go with that sample.

- MAXUS026983
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Q Okay, so0 == well, let me snriké tnac
Juestion. Erom‘cnoserthtee-incn samples, YOu nade a
decermination tidac i1t was more likely-ﬁhan not cnat
tnis -- these XS reprasented P01inc sources of dioxin
conctamination, I cnink you described tnem as leaks or
drips or wnat néve you?

A Yes, oased on che crendvand The dis:ribucion or
all or tne points, aot any one pgarticular poxn:; out
the :tend‘Of all of tne points, I made an
incterpretcation deﬁerhina;ion that tne likely eatry was
due to leaks primarily through tne rloor slag;

Q All rignt, let me ask you this. Some of
these Xs are aot on floor slabs,'cofrect, they‘re
outside oa the ground?

A That's rigp:, 3ome are tnrougn tne floor and
Some are rignt outside the floor.

Q Let me'ask you izf somebody took a'nose and
éonnected it to a TCP tank that had dioxin,
contéminaced TCP ia it, and spilled it over a very
large area, you-would expect to £ina che large numoer
of poiats witnin thac area of cnat spill waich nad hign
concentraiions ot dioxin, is tnat a correct assumption?
A If enougn was put ouc tnare on che ground, I
cnihk,'you kKnow, whatever tnat area of ;nat'spiil.would

oe would likely show conceatrations in the range of one
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part per million Qnich were the Xs3.

Q So witn régard == I'm gorry, I didn't wadg
to cut you off. So witn regétd to cthe Xs down on tne
jround, you can't cell us‘wnecher that is the result or
a discreet pinpoinc th:ee-incn-spill or whetner it's
Part oOr a mucn much larger spill becausernooody gver
tOo0OKk sampies from anywnefe around tnat X?

A And my interpretation wouid oe irf ¥you tooKk a
sample érfOOt away, you would ne likely gect a Simiiar
large aumber alcnough it Qould generally ope erracic,
out if 20 samples were taken, say, in the size of tnis
room in an area that nad a spili over the entire room,
the numpers would”jumpraround.'aut the trend orf all of
thea would génetally represent the intensity of chat
spill.

Q What I'm trying to get at, though, is

nodoay ever determined that 30 it is possible that this

X that's out nere on che s01l is part of a amuch larger

$piliz
A That's correct.
Q Okay.
A - Ana ctnat actuaily would pe @y interprecation is

that 1L you tooOK other samples in the vicinity of those
&8, you would get more Xs.

Q Okay. Now, aid anybody ever take a sample

MAXUS026985
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from, say, a root dnderneacn onerof these xs? o
A Yes. Id_ﬁac:,-tne sampling protocol was at all
tane places, there we:ebsurrace samples as opposed to
poring sampies. Tnere wera sanples caken :irét 3ix
lncnes, second six incnes and the higher or che two
vaiues is wnat I used aad chen ctnere was a sample taken
Of the next 12 inches so at every one of those éoints.
there 1s a numper tnac is rrom, say, 12 cto 24 inches.

'Q : .Oxay, now about four feet selow?
A dell, chen there were a rfew caxen.deeper and
then at the noring‘locaiions, they went down 15, 20, 30
feet,

Q | Well, I'a specificaily speaking orf these
locations aere.
A BUt some orf tnose are borings and some of those
are the shallow surrace samples.

Q' I think you agreed with me'chat as you
move away from a point source of contamxnatlon, a
concenttatxon level 1is decteased 80 if we were to rind
a level wnere you had a surféce concentration -= well,
strike that, sutrace concentratxon of a nundreo parts
pez million and tnen you amoved rour feet down and you
found che concen:tatxon Of nundred parts per million as
well. would that tend to lead you to conclude that

there nad neen a leakage over a prolonged period of

 MAXUS026986
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;ime?
A Thaﬁ gets3 to che nacdre of the race orf
flowé:nrougn Of material and I actually chink ctne rate
Of flow~ctnrough this £ill whic¢n tnat's tne material
we're talking about since it's the upper éoil, there
probaoly -- tnese flowed fairly quickly and went on
down the proifile.
THE COURT: I chink pernaps we oecter
sStop.
dR. SHAHRIARI: Your Honor, 1 have just
one very pasically last Juestion. |
Q dow iong has maﬁxind kLnown of the

existence of ground wacer?

A I have no idea.

Q Would you guess it's a couple cen:uties at
least?
A Oh, far mé:e than that.

MR. SHAHRIARI: Thank you,'noching
Lurcier.

THE COURT: Are there otner darense
Juestions? Atl right, I see we nave several.
de‘re at this stage wnere we'll 3top. Lét's
" Keep iﬁ moving racner Jguickly when we get pack.

(Whereupon a recess is caken.)

THE COURT: Please pe seated, ladies and

MAXUS026987
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genciemen. Dr, Nolfssili remains én tne stand
under §atn. - Who wants to go.next?
4R. PAVETTA: Antonio Favetta on aenaii oL

AlG, | _ |
CROSS-EXAHINATION 3y MR; FAVETTA:

Q Dr. Wolrskill, am I correct that che only
samples tnat yoﬁ dtilized ian arriving at your
conclusions with respect to Pbint ﬂumbetrz'was'surface
Samples at the site?

A Tnat‘'s correct.

Q Okay, you did not use any boring samples,
Is cthat correct?

A That's correct.

Q And am I also correct pased on your
earlier testimony I oelieve in response to guestions bf
Mr. Koeprtt yesnerdéy that the samples were done by

someone other than yourselr?

A Thac*'s correct,
Q And wno was that?
A The surrface samples in the zero to l12-inch from

the locations callea surface saapling -~

Q I'm only concernea witn tnat.
A Well, I'm making a distinction between surrace
Sampliags and porings, cney each nad shallow 3amples in

cnewm. The oorings wera done 07 @y firm and some of

MAXUS026988
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|

those locacions were samples taken from soil vorings,
the shallow samples were taken oy employees ac 1.,7T.
Corporation.

) Just 50 we nave it 3traight, you only
relied on tae snaliow surfaqe samples in reaching your
conclusions. Is that correct?

A _’Tnacfs pPart or tne basis for that conclusion,
Jut that's correct, only chose samples were uysed. I
nave onliy one co:regtion. I tnink cnere's a sewer
sample that is deeper ana cne sump samplas_may De

deeper than 12 incnes because the sumps are prooably

- deeper cthan 12 inches s0 those are tne only exceptions.

Q I chink you also described those surrtface
samplés a3 piased samples and not in any pejorative
sense. 1Is chat cbtrect?

A The part of the program tnat was called snallow
Samples was a piased sample. The poring system was not
a piased system. |

Q My question is only with respect to
Shallow surface samples rfrom now on.

A And cney come from pocnrkinas Of exploration,

Q- Oxay,'éo that tne snallow surrace samples
taat you're talking apbout came ooth rrom snallow cestcs
as far as the doring tests, is that what you're saying?

A Yes.

MAXUS026989
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Q | And you used.oo:n Of those?

A Yeé. I used everytning that haag a4 cest value
that was in the zero to 12-inch range.

Q- Okay. 1Is it rair to say looxking at
Flgure =-- I guess thnis is the overlay's D-687 thact has
tne color Xs and gots and criangles tha; tne majority
Of the samples were taken at areas in close proximity
O tne process equipmenc?

A Process equipment, yes.

Q And would it oe fair co say than there are
relatively few sampleS‘taken in areas away rrom the
process eguipment?

A | I would say that there are rewer samples taken
away trom the two ouildings'that had the process
eéuipmen:/in ic.

Q The oiased samples that were taken by I.T.

ware oasically to determine whether there was dioxin on

the site presgnt'in concentrations above action levels.
Is that correct? |
A Yes,

Q Tney weren't looking to determine how the
aioxin got in:q,tne Soil. 1Is that correct?
A I tnink that's correct.

Q -And..tnerefote, they went to the aneart of

tne aatctter, 30 co 3peak, and went to wnere tney would

MAXUSO269997“
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most likely £ina cne dioxin in chose concencracions
wnicn was near tne process equipmenc, correc:?
A Well, tney aia not only:looﬁ.cnere.

Q ‘Well, if we look at the concent:ation oL
dots, circies and Xs, you would Agtee with me that caey

CTOOK more samplés nearer the process eguipment than

otherwige?
A That's correct.
Q Ana going co your Conclusion Numper 2, ctne

30il samples tnat you looked at were soil samples,

thererore, chat came LIOm areas near the process

7 equipment as opposed to those areas not near the

process eguipment. I8 cthat correct?
a No, it was taken from all tne samples, some are
near and some are not near.

Q 3ut you will agree with me chat there were

more samples closest ©O the p:ocess eguipmenc cnan

otherwise?
A ‘Thact's correct.
Q So the samples tnat you looked at and you

looked at all of tne samples and I don't disagree witn

tnat, you would e looking at samples that came closestc
Lo cihe process egquipment?
A I don't tnink I loked at sampies chat cended To.

oe close to cine process equipment, I looked at all the

.. MAXUS026991 . ...
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samples.
Q Fair enougn.
A The density of the sampiing doesn‘'t nave much to

Jdo witn tals analysis.

Q Okay, so tnat you_loo&ed‘éc all the
samples, out because Oof the way tne sahpling was done
ay someone 2lse, there were more samples availapble from

areas closer to cthe process eguipmeant than otnerwise.

"Is that correctc?

A Yes.

Q So, tnererore, would it pe rair to say
tnat you could reparase Concliusion Number 2 to read the
algnest concentrations of dioxin contaminacion in the
piased s0il sa@ples at the Lister Avenue sitg_correlaté
well witn the iocacions winece TCP or 2,4,5-T products
were manufactured or stored, et cetera, would that De a
fair restatement of your conclusion?

A I don't tnink :nai would pe an accurate
restacement of thne conclusibn..

Q Would not oe accurate?'

A I dod‘: think so. Weil, I méan not axactly. I
mean I naven't taoougnt enougn apout that léﬁgua;e to

Know nQw accuratce it 18 or wnat it means, out wnat

1mpresses me is tnat tnat is aot how I would state the

axercisa.
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Q Wwell, cne so0il samples you'we;a looking at
were olased sSoil samplies in chat tney were noc evenly
distrioucgd acrdss the entire grid for 80 Lister
Avenue?

A NOo, tney‘'re not correcet, some_of_ine samples
were plasea and some were no; oiased. ' ‘fhere‘s a
collection of sampling scnemes on cnatc charct, some
oiased, some unbiased, I lboked at all or them.

Q Okay;'out going pack to my previous

Juestion, I tnink you agreed with me tnat or all the
‘samples that you had more of them that were rrom areas

closest to the process equipmenc. Is tnat correct?

A Tnét's correct.

Q SO insctead of célling it pviased for
purposes of my question, let's say weignted samples.
There were more in one area :nén another, the soil
3ampies you were looking at were fiom tne weignted
samples? |
A Well, that'’s not a correct way co state che
result of that analysis.

o] I'm not asking abouct_the result, I'm
askiag ano&: the number of samples? .

A But cnen you are going to a result and in

talking aoout the 3ampling syscem ana I doa't taiak

chat 13 & correct way CO cnaracterize che result of the

. MAXUS026993
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- otner samples.

A I looked at tne samples cthat were availaple.

analiysis.
Q You looked at more sSamples that were

closer t0 cne process equipment than otherwise?

a Yes.

Q Bven.nhougn you looked at all tine samples?
A Tnat'; correcet, |

Q Okay, pased on what you looked at, thac

suggested co You ihat cthe proximity of the locacion
vetwaen cne process equipment and cne concentrations ofr
dioxin, that :ne'cohtaminacion é:‘;ne Plaat sicte
occurred as a :ésdlt of Aumerous small accidenctali leaks
and spills? |

A Thac's oecause the nigh values were all over at

the pzocess plant and tnere were no high values in the

Q Ang are you celling me that you looked at
sanélea from every point, let‘s‘say, every two feet or
every three feet for-the entire grid orf the site?

A Nb. I looked at tne samples that were availaple,

Q And cthat's pecause you didn't have samples
ror, iec's say, every two feet or avery three feet‘at
che entire site, you looked at wnat I.T. gave you., 1Is

chat correct?

Tnere are enougn samples tnat are away r£rom cnose
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process equipment to oe significanc as far as aittiag a
nigﬁ vaiue.

| ] Well, Doctor, cnen would it oe 3ignirficanc
1z, :or example, I told you ror 2urposes of my guestion
that cnere were, let's say, a dozen places wnere you
got X values, nign values, wnat nave oeen marxed nere
in red, would tnat oe a significant Eactorrinryour
nypotnesia?

MR. PALLS: Object to the rorm of tne
Juestion necause I don't unders:énd itc.

A I don't understand the question.

- Q Okay, your nypothesis is to create a
cor:elatién petween proximity of the process equ;pmen:
to the density or intensity, if you will, of the dioxin .
thac was round near it. Is that correct?

A Yes.

Q  And from chat proximity, tnat correlation
e#en thougn ic's not a statisctical one, you say you
reach a conclusion that the way in which ctha gioxin
reached the §round. the soil, was as a result of

aumerous small accidental leaks and spills. Isn't that

¢correct?
A Yes.
Q And one of the ractors chat you considered

in reaching tnat was tne apsence orf any nigh values ia

. MAXUS026995
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otner locations. Is cthac correct?
A Tnac's correcet.

Q j But we aon't Know if ali the otner
xocations were tested. Is cnac corzect? In fact, I'li
repnrase chne guestion. We know cnat all ﬁhe otner
locations were not tested. Is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Andg, tnerefqre,vyou would agree tnac if I
told you tnat tnere wasn't a resulc wnibn snpwed hign
values at tnose otner locacions, tnat would impact on
your nypo:hesis. Is that correct?

A Thac's correct.

Q ' And, yet, you agree that you never nad cthe
data to test that aypotnesis. Is tnat correcc? -

A Nd, I believe that chis data array which is a
compination of the oiased sampling écheme and unoiased
sampling scheme are statistically significant and
tnat‘s my judgment without making calculations.
3tatistically significant oased dn tnét array of d;:&

points. We have enougn points to make this assessmenc.

Q That's your judgment?
A That's my judgmenc.,
Q ‘Okay, out you do agree with me thac che

individuals tnat were conducting cthe data sampling were

- doing it ror a dircferent reason, ctney were aot lookiag
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Lo prove or aisprove a nypotnesis, tney were simply
Looking to find‘out.wnetne: dioxin was on the site and
wnétnet it.excgeded action ieveLs. Is tnat correce?
A Ye3.

Q Ana tnat tne nest place to ook ror that
was closerto the process equipment as opposed to aot
close to ctne process eguipment. Is-:nat correct?

A Yes. : ' @
QR} FAVETTA:  Thank you, no furcher

Juescions. |

MR. QUINN: Thomas Quinn on pehalf of

Evanston.

THE COURT: dr. Quinn, come on up.
CROSS-EXAMINATION BY Hs. QUINN:

Q Dr. Wolfskill, in response to a guestion
posed to you by Mr. Moser, 1l believe that you scaced
chat you could not tell when any one particular
location orf-site was contaminated_and‘wnen the river
was contaminated oy dioxin. 1Is that correct?

A I could not tell any one place in the river or
any one place on land. |

.Q ‘ Okay. Now, in'ydur conclusions, I opelieve
in Conclusion 2 that you said tnat didxin goc out ac

leasct rrom che process itself through a series or




&

10

11

12
13

14

- 15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

nuLLanddl-LEOSS-YULIAN , 113

A ' ‘Yes.

Q And cﬁoseﬂoccurred in varying degrees
oetweeﬁ ‘51 and '697 |
A Yes,

Q okay, sb you néa roughly 18 years oL leaks
and 3pills?
A fhac‘s what I would expect.

Q =~ Okay. Now, also your report lists various

aigracion amecnanisms., I3 chat correct?.

A Yes.
Q Okay, some Or those are wina, air and so0il
_ movement?
A Yes.
Q ‘And chef would pe continuous in varying

degrees over the course of time?
A Moat orf them are continuous for the whole
perioa.

Q dgay, an& I pelieve tnat you nad testified
that a migration of dioxin off-site began somewneres in
apouc '517
A I would expect that it oegan at the oeginning of
:he period.v | |

Q Okay, 30 from that point of timg up dnﬁil
coday, you're really talking aoout 36 years of

migracion of dioxin off-sice?

~ MAXUS026008




.‘ o

[=2}

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
i8
19
20
21
22
23

24

WOLLSALil=-UCOSS-Qulan 114

A Yes.

Q Now,'wna;.was che action level-off-sice
Eor dioxin? Wnat was cthe action level :hat tne DEP was
using?
A Theré was a clean&p period in the oLf-site leved

and the action level were one part per pillioa.

Q Osay. 138 chat a relatively low thresnolid?
A On, I think it is a low thresnold, yes.

Q = EXtremely low?
A well, I think it . is ﬁfom my own assessment waicn

is not -~ wy assessment is not authorized the way this

" system works, wnat I believe about this, pbut I think it

is a very low number, yes.
Q Okay, ana your expertise, you have
familiarity with che movement of s0il and thne erosion

of soil, things or that sort, that's in your area of

expertise?
A Among other tnings, yes.

Q And that's in your area of expertise?
A Yes. |

Q Now, we Know that the dioxin was found

off-sice sometime in 1983, do we aot?
A Yes.

Q Now, the day chat cnat was round, you're

- not celling ctnis Courct tnat che dioxin just aappened to

.. .MAXUS026999,
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Jet there che aay berore, are you?

A I don't oelieve tnat's possipla.
Q okay, chat's'extremely‘unlikely, correct?
A Yes.
Q And, in fact, would i; De fair to say to a

degree tnac it's more probaplg than not that the dioxia
off-site nad gotten chere prior to 19837

A : Oh, I feel sure ctnat diokin fiad gotten off-éite
oefore 1983.

Q And it's more prooaple tnhan aot ctnat it

nad gotten there peiore 1981, correcc?
A Well, I cthink it is highly probapble that it got
there in every one of those years.

Q ogay,'and would it pe fair to say that it
nad gdtten tneie_;o the one part per pillion action
level prior to 19817
AF 1 Qoulu think in most of the areas that were
atfécted that that would be true.

MR. QUINN: I've nothing furcher.

MR. CALOGERO: YQur.Honor, I have one
question and.if your Honor allows me, I'll ask
it.

THE COURT: Okay, go anead.

.. MAXUS027000, ...
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CROSS-EXAMINATION 8Y MR. CALOGERO:
Q Dr. Woliskill, pecause it was comamon

practice in the 1950s and 1960s to nave spiils and

leaks, is it your conclusion that no matter aow gross

tne conduct OF biamond Snamrqcx, tng results wouid
always pe accidencai?
A I don'c Know now to uhderstand what “gross
conduct® is. I don't know the meaning of cnac, so I
don‘t know how to answer tnat guescion.

Q Normaﬁtet now oad tne conauct of Diamona
Alkali was in running this plant in the 1950s and ‘'60s,
tne results according to you would always be | |
accidencal?

MR. PALLS: Object to the form or tne
question..

THE COURT: Yean, I really think, ue .
Calogero is really interested in accidental in
tne view of tné insutancg law. |

MR. CALOGERO: ©No, your Honor.

THE COURT: And tnat's not wnat Dr.
Wolrskiil is here for.

MR. CALOGERO: HNo, I'm referring to
accidental as ne ;efeis to ic in Cohcxusi§n 2.

THE COURT: Do you understand tné'

guestion?

.. MAXUS027001
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THE WAITNESS: welil, che éart that I cannoc
speak cto is tne judgment Or Joou or oDad or gross
pecause I‘actually pelieve nhe company operatea
witnin puolic‘policy at cthe cime. Taereiore, I
don‘t see now I can use cne‘words bad, gross.

Q wouid :néir conduct ever get to tne'point
ﬁnere the results would oe other tnan acciden:al?

MR, FALLS: I object to the rfora of tne

Juestion.

THE COURT: Well, do you undersctand waat

tne question means, Dr. WOifsuill?

THE WITNESS: wWell, tnere's now the 3cope.
A I concluded thnat part or the Eeleases were
accidencal and part of tnese releases weré'plénned.
Now, forlcne‘part that were accidental, I'd say'tne
answer‘'s yes, I think they would all bpe a¢cidéncal as a
result of their conduct £for those releases tnat were
accidental.

Q And ror chose‘releases thac were planaed,
are you saying that tnosé releases are not encompassed
in Coanclusion 27
A Conclusion 2 is limited to accidental releases
that cause contamination orf the pliant site.

9 I understand chat.

A Okay, witnin tnat scope, I think caeir

. MAXUS027002___
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,l conduct -- tneir conduct was conéistent witn tne

2 | accidencal releases tnat are ihcluded in Cbnciusion

3 | Numoer 2. J

4 ' }Q NOo matter aow mismanaged chat conduct

5 would appear to oe today?

6 MR. FALLS: Object ﬁo the form of che

7. Juestion. |

8 ‘THE CdUﬁT: i?ll sustain the opjection.

3 ' "¥R. CALOGERO: Notning furtner caen,

10 " Judge, cthank you.

11 | THE COURT: Anytning furtnét on ctne

12 defense side? Do you have any redicect?

13 - MR. PALLS: Very few questions, your

i4 Honor.

15 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 3Y MR. FALLS:

16 ' Q Dr. Wolfskill, let me direct your

17 attention to one 0L these diagtamé waich aépea:s in the
i8 oack or your report. It's thne third one from the end
i9 and it‘'s tne one that I thiak Mr. Cuyler questioned you
20 'abouc and let me ask you to look very carefully ac a.
21 ' legend wniCn appears in cthe lower right-nand corner and
22 look at it closely and s3ee whether you can read it to
23 | me. It's a lintle,natq TO aake ou:,'nnétPs why I ask
.24 you to look at it qﬁite c;:efully.

25 A Wwell, cnis is'a note, :nié drawing was

. MAXUS027003
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originally made by, I doa‘t Know the name of the
company, olank associates in 1957. I belie#e that's
‘'57. Equipment locations anave. aot been reviséd.

Q  Could I ask you again co 1look at that date

and can you confirm to me wnether cnat is a 2 or a 72

A The last digit, che rourta digitc?
Q  ‘The 1952 or 72
A That's rignt, tane last digit is a 2, it's the

next to tne last digit. Looks like a 5, put I'm not
sure, out tne last digic is a 2, it's not a 7.
_Q Thank you.v
MR. CUYLER: That's what it looks like to
you, Doctor. Oh, I'm sorry?
THE WITNESS: I'm saying chat's 1952, the
highest uncettain:y is tne 5,

Q Now, you were asxed apout some Of the

depositions that you read prior to giving your

testimony today. Did cthe depositions which youArea¢
include aepositions of a number or employees at the

plant who worked tnere during some period of its

goperaction?
A Yes.
Q Let ine read you a rew names and ask you

wnetner you nappen to recall wnether tne names I read

you are the names OF people wnose depositions you read.
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Ay8KO.
A Yes.

Q | Céntanni.
A ' Yes.

Q Blair.
A Yes.

Q Scurman.
A Yes.

Q  Bradsnaw.
A Yes.

Q Okay. Now, with respect to cthe samples

waoich you used in tne developing of the chart wnicn has

peen aarked as Plaintirff's Exhiobit 612, I tnink you've
tescified on a numper of oécaéioné that you usea only
che snallow soil samples?
A That's correct, zero to l1l2-inch deﬁtp range.

Q Now, why did you use»:hOse_samplea ratner
tnan some outer saﬁples?
A I was interested in the distribution or dioxin
at its first contact witn eatry which would necessarily
#ean a very snallow sample, tne ohly exception being at
the sewer or Sump where it's avli:tle_deep;r.

Q -Now, I think you wefe asked apouc

sometning wnich was cailed wiped sample?

. MAXUS027005
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Q What is a wiped sampie?
A A wiped sample is a sample taken crom ;ne wall
OL a room 3uchH as tnis so tnat a cnemical arfixed to
tne wall mignﬁ DJe analyzed in tne laporatcory.
| Q  And you testified, I think. tnat you did

not use tnose samples?

A That's correct,
Q  Ana wny did you not use those samples?
A Well, tnose samples are not rerflective of wnere

dioxin would entar tne sunsoil Decause they are not
samples of tne supsoil.
Q Now, I think you were also asked apout

chip samples?

A Yes.
Q What are chip sampies?
A Chip sample is similar to a wipe, put it's

actually a chip of tne wall or chimney or wnatever's
peing sampled i3 taken to the laporatory and tne chip

itself is analyzed.

Q  And you Jdid not use tne chip samples?
A Thac's correct,
Q Ana wiay did you not usSe the chip samples?

A Because, again, tney do not represent a dioxin
concentracion in che 3nhallow s30il.

Q " Now, I tnink you've already made clear

. MAXUS027006 .
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tmat you did not use che sanples taken at levels deeper

tnan tne rirsc 12 1aches?

A ~ Tnac's correct.
T ‘Did YyOu review tnose sampies?
A Yes.
Q And did anyening aoout them. suggest t§ you

tnat yoh: analysis snhould pe changed or modified?

‘A No.

MR. FALLS: Tnat's all I aave, your donor.
THE.COURT:_ Anything fu;:ner on tne
Derendants? Fine. We're fiﬁishgd then wich Or.
Wolfskiil. We'll excuse Dr. WOlfskill.b' |
THE COURT: Let's go to dr. Backer. Wno
is going to oe doing the questioning.
' MR. GROARK: I am, your Honor.
JOHN S. BACKER, sworn.
DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. GROARK=-
| | THE COURT: Have a seat there, Mr. Backer.

Whenever you're ready, Mr. Groarx, go ahead.

Q “Mr. Backer, would you state your present
position?
A dy present 2amployment is witn Aetna Life and

Casualty. I'm an assistanc vice-president in tae
Commercial Claim Deparctment.

Q And would you descripe your aducation

 MAXUS027007__
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